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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholder and the Board of Directors of Export Insurance Company KazakhExport JSC:

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Export Insurance Company KazakhExport JSC (the "Company") as at 31 December 2023, and the

Company's financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards.

What we have audited

The Company's financial statements comprise:

e the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2023;

¢ the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023;

e the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

* the notes to the financial statements, comprising material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) and the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Republic of Kazakhstan. We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and the ethical requirements of
the Republic of Kazakhstan that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
34 Al-Farabi Ave., Building A, 4th floor, Almaty, Kazakhstan, A25D5F6
T: +7 (727) 330 32 00, F: +7 (727) 244 68 68, www.pwe.kz
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Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises Annual report
(but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon), which we have not

obtained prior to the date of this auditor’'s report, and, which is expected to be made available to us
after that date.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company'’s internal control.
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» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company'’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

On behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

%mﬁmw LLD

Approved by: < NOTEPRAYG Signed by:
A L/ £ ’

Azamat Konratbayevs, T, Aigul Akhmetova

Managing Director.” = / Audit Partner
PricewaterhouseCodpefs L LP—=" Auditor in charge

(General State License of the Ministry of (Qualified Auditor's Certificate
Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan Ne0000083 dated 27 August 2012)

Ne0000005 dated 21 October 1999)

1 March 2024
Almaty, Kazakhstan



“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated
31 December 31 December
Note 2023 2022
KZT’000 KZT’000
[nsurance revenue 10 6,791,448 4,554,729
Insurance service expenses 10 (8,732.651) (9.549,127)
Net expenses from reinsurance contracts held (816,410) (645,796)
Total result from insurance activities (2,757,613) (5,640,194)
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued (3.651.204) (1.144.494)
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held 125,783 108,956
Total finance expenses from insurance activities (3,525,421) (1,035,538)
Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method 11 17,086,377 12,663,591
Other interest income 11 76,160 72,585
Net gain from change in fair value of investment securities
measured at fair value through profit or loss 37,767 40,995
Realised loss from change in fair value of investment securities
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - (29,314)
Net foreign exchange (loss)/gain (2.270.455) 2,324,209
General administrative expenses 12 (2.172,994) (2.121,231)
Gains from reversal/impairment losses of financial assets 54,085 (14,434)
Other operating expense, net (13,588) (109,133)
Profit before income tax 6,514,318 6,151,536
Income tax expense 13 (1.560.434) (1.352,160)
Profit for the period 4,953,884 4,799,376
Other comprehensive income, net of income tax
Movement in fair value reserve:
- Net change in fair value 554,576 (2.092,723)
- Net change in fair value transferred to profit or loss - 24,168
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the period, net of
income tax 554,576 (2,068,555)
Total comprehensive income for the period 5,508,460 2,730,821

The financial information as set out on pages 5 to 68 were approved by the Management Board on
1 March 2024 and were signed on its behalf by:

A.Ye. Kaligazin o | Zh. K. Sartkozhinova
Chairman of the Management Board " o '_ Chief Accountant

¥/

3
The Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction with the Notes
to, and forming part of, the Financial Information.



KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Statement of Financial position for the year ended 31 December 2023

Restated Restated
31 December 31 December 1 January
Note 2023 2022 2022
KZT’000 KZT000 KZT’000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 14 100,770,705 71.878,037 14,657,355
Placements with banks 15 20,961,199 22,324,599 50,859,106
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income 16 23,299,824 25.201,794 35,166,389
- measured at amortised cost 16 6,044,231 18,210,256 22,803,125
- measured at fair value through profit or loss - 808,847 775,185
Reinsurance contract assets 910,985 1.066,963 1,020,259
Insurance contract assets 17 202,822 119.817 125,201
Property and equipment 105,708 113,379 116,968
Current tax asset - 349.716 837.619
Deferred tax assets 54.744 82.192 522,049
Other assets 1,036,534 931,195 452,243
Total assets 153,386,752 141,086,795 136,335,499
LIABILITIES
Insurance contract liabilities 17 34,413,396 26,560,623 23,354,755
Reinsurance contract liabilities 65,573 117,670 258,060
Current tax liabilities 162.156 - -
Deferred tax liabilities 797.413 149,849
Other liabilities 421,723 650,120 436.579
Total liabilities 35,860,261 27,478,262 24,049,394
EQUITY
Share capital 18 105,100,000 105,100,000 105,100,000
Additional paid-in capital 732.819 732,819 732.819
Stabilisation reserve 114,222 136,042 240.259
Provision for unexpected risks 18 1,085.964 11,097,425 14,941,834
Provision for changes in the fair value of
securities (2.572,868) (3,127,444) (1,058.889)
Retained earnings/(accumulated loss) 13,066,354 (330.309) (7,669.918)
Total equity 117,526,491 113,608,533 112,286,105
Total liabilities and equity 153,386,752 141,086,795 136,335,499
6

The Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the
Financial Information.



KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC

Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation

Gain/(loss) from impairment of financial assets

Net gain from change in fair value of investment securities
measured at fair value through profit or loss

Unrealised gain from change in fair value of investment
securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income

Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate
method

Other interest income

Unrealised foreign exchange difference

Cash flows from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities

(Increase)/decrease in operating assets

Placements with banks

Insurance contract assets

Reinsurance contract assets

Other assets

Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities

Other liabilities

Net cash from operating activities before interest received
and income tax paid

Income taxes paid
Interest income received

Cash flows from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale and repayment of investment securities
Acquisition of debt securities

Acquisition of property and equipment and intangible
assets

Cash flows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Note
14)

2023 2022
KZT°000 KZT°000
6,514,318 6,151,536
111,311 76,023
(54.085) 14,434
(37.767) (40.995)
- 97.836
(17.086,377) (12.663,591)
(76.160) (72.585)
2,270,455 (2.324.209)
(8,358,305) (8,761,551)
(113,367) 36.989.617
155,978 (46,704)
(83.005) 5,384
(140,745) (429.258)
7,852,773 3,205,869
(52,097) (140.390)
(110,554) 212,652
(849,322) 31,035,619

(300,000)
16,434,254 11,269,535
15,284,932 42,305,154
16.356.871 36.360.201
(459,864) (22.019,513)
(68.980) (131,436)
15,828,027 14,209,252
(1.590,502) (1,408,393)
(1,590,502) (1,408,393)
29,522,457 55,106,013
2.114.669

(629.789)
71.878.037 14,657,355
100,770,705 71,878,037
7

The Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the Notes to, and forming part of, the Financial

Information.



‘uoleULIOU] [eIoURUL 3 J0 Med Suruio) pue ‘o) SAJON Y3 IM uondunfuoo ur peal aq o1 st Anby ur saguey) Jo JuAWAILIS Y,

£T07 42quadac] [ € papua awad ayj 4of dpinbg up saduvy?) fo juauaipig
IS Auvndwio) aouvansuy uodxy  podxgyyvzvy,,

8
16+'9TS'LI1 FSE€990°¢C1 (898°7LS°7) +96'S80°T TPl 6I8TEL 000°001°S01
(Z0S*065°T) 6LL'TPT'S - (ror‘110°0m) (078'17) & R
o 078°'1¢ - - (0Z8°12) - =
= 19¢°110°01 = (19¥°110°01) & . =
(zos'068°1) (zos’06s°1) N N N 5 =
09+'805°S +88°€S6'F OLE PSS 2 = = -
9LSFSS = 9LCES = = = =
9.8 ¥S¢ = 9LEFSE < = = -
F88°€CHy 188°CS6't = = = = =
€ECRO9°ET L (60£°0€¢€) (PrF°LTIE) CTHLO0'TT Tr09€1 618°TEL 000°001°S01
Aynba (sso] $I1311NI3S SYSLA EYRETEN jended m jended aaeys
[e10], PAIRNUWNIIY)  JO INjeA JIE) pajdadxaun uonesiqels -pred jeuonippy
/ssuruaea aYy) ur SATUBYD  10J UOISIAOL]
pauie)ay 10] UOISIAOAJ

€707 19quIddA( [ € Ik due[ey

SIAUMO [IIM SUOIIESUE) [BjO]

9AJI9S21 UONESI[IqR)S WOL] J9JSuRL]

(81 210N)

sys1I pejoadxaun 10] uoisiaold woiy Jajsuel ],
(81 210N) spuapisl(

Aynba w

A[322.11p PapI022d SIIUMO YIIM SUOIIBSURL ],
Jeak o1) J0] awodul aAsudydadwod [ejo],
awooul aAIsuaya1duos 19yo (el

anjeA 11e} ur a5ueyd PN

sso aAlsuayaaduiod 1_YO

Ieak 2y 10J 11J01d

awodui dalIsudydadwod [ejo |,

(L1

QY[ Jepun pajeisal) €707 Atenuef | je souejeg
000.LZM



"UOBULIOJU] [BIOURUL] A1) JO 1ed SUTULIO} PUB ‘03 SAJON Y YIIm uonounfuod ur peai aq 0} st Aynby ur safuey) Jo Juawalels Ay,

6
€E€S'B09°ET 1 (60€°0€€) (PHH'LTI'E) STHL6O'TT H0°9€1 618°TEL 000°001°S01 70T 1quRDA(] [ € Je duEjeyg
(€6€°80%°1) SET'OPS'T = (601'+P8°€) (LIZF01) ) = SI2UMO [}IA SUOIIRSURI) [BJO],
G L1TH01 = z (L1Tvo1) ) - OAIIS3] UONBSI[IqRIS WO I9JSUBL]
E 60+ F¥8°€ = (60++18°€) = - - (81 210N)
SYSLI pardadxaun 10J uoisiaoid woly Jofsuel],
(€6£°80F°1) (€6£°801°1) 5 » = = - (81 210N) spuepIAIq
Aynba ur
A[392.11p PapA0331 SIGUMO YIIAL SUOIJIBSUE.L],
IT8°0€L'T 9LE'66L Y (S55°890°7) = & = z 134 3y J10j awodul dAIsudyaIduiod [ejog,
(€€<'890°7) = (€6€°890°2) 5 : z - awooul aarsuayasdwos 1010 (B0 ],
(£6€'890°7) g (5€€°890°7) % . E - anjea Jigj ur aSueyd 19N
s uwodur darsudygaadwod 12yIQ
9LEG6L'Y 9LEGOLY - = 3 - - IBOA 9Y) 10 11J01]
z awodur dAIsuayasdwod [ejo],
SO1'98Z°T11 (816699°L) (688°8S0°1) PES IPGTL 6ST'0¥T GI8‘TEL 000°001°S01 (payeysaa) 770z Aaenuer | je duejeg
(LE§LTO'T) (LES'LTOT) - - - - - L1 S¥:1 01 uonisuen Jo 19339
PG EITFIL (I80°TrL'S) (688°8S0°D) PESTFG F1 65T°0VT 618TEL 000°001°S01 1707 13qada( | € e dueey
Aynbs §so| SALINJAS SYSLI EYWEREXT fended [eaded aaeys 000.LZM

[eo], PARMWNDY  JO IN[BA A1E) pajoadxaun uonesijiqe}s  ur-pred [euonIppy

oY) ul SAJUBYD  10] UOISIAOI]
10J uoIsiAoa g

€207 42queada(] [§ papua avad ayp 10f qunbsy ur saduvy?) Jo uauaing
28 quvnduio)y aouvansuy podxsy  Jodxgyyoioy,,



(2)

(b)

(©)

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Reporting entity
Organisational structure and activities

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC (the “Company”) is a joint-stock company
incorporated in 2003 in the Republic of Kazakhstan in accordance with the Kazakhstan legislation.

The Company holds a license to conduct insurance and reinsurance activity No.2.1.13 dated 24
November 2022 issued by the Agency of the Republic of Kazakhstan for Regulation and
Development of the Financial market (the “ARDFM™). The license enables the Company to conduct:

1. the voluntary insurance activities:
1) insurance of guarantees and sureties;
2)  insurance against other financial losses;

3)  insurance of the financial organisations’ losses, except for the insurance classes specified in

sub-paragraphs 13), 14), 15) and 16) of paragraph 3, Article 6 of the Law of the Republic of
Kazakhstan “On Insurance Activity™;

4)  Loan insurance;

5)  civil liability insurance, except for the classes specified in sub-paragraphs 9),10),11),11-1 and
11-2) of paragraph 3, Article 6 of the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan “On Insurance
Activity™; and

2. reinsurance activities.

The areas of the Company’s strategic development comprise further improvement of the instruments
to support export, create conditions to increase a number of exporters and enhance the operating
efficiency.

The Company’s registered office and place of business is: S5A Mangilik El Avenue, Astana,
Republic of Kazakhstan, Z05T2H3.

Shareholder

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, National Management Holding “Baiterek™ JSC
hereinafter referred to as the “Parent Company™ owns 100% of the outstanding shares. The
Company’s ultimate shareholder is the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan. Under the
Contract of Share Transfer N0.299-u dated 29 May 2013, the Company’s holding of shares was
transferred under trust management to National Management Holding “Baiterek™ JSC. National
Management Holding “Baiterek™ JSC was established in accordance with the Decree of the President
of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 22 May 2013, No.571 “On Certain Measures for Optimisation
of the System of Management of the Development Institutions, Financial Organisations and
Development of the National Economy.”

As at 31 December 2023 the number of employees of the Company was 98 (31 December 2022: 100
employees).

Kazakhstan business environment

On 24 February 2022 Russia launched a special military operation in Ukraine. In response, the
United States, the European Union and a number of other states imposed widespread sanctions on
Russia, including banning Russian banks from the Swift system. Russia is Kazakhstan's largest trade

partner. Kazakhstan is also heavily reliant on the Caspian Pipeline Consortium (CPC), which carries
up to 80% of its oil exports.

10
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The special military operation in Ukraine and sanctions imposed on Russia have affected commodity
prices and increased volatility of the Tenge exchange rate. Inflation moderated to 9.8% in December
2023 after peaking at 21.3% in February 2023. During 2023 the economy grew 4.8% and according
to the analysts' forecasts, the growth rate of the national economy over the next three years will
average just under 4% annually. As at the date of issuing these financial statements the official
exchange rate of the National Bank of the Republic Kazakhstan was Tenge 450.61 per US Dollar 1

compared to Tenge 454.56 per US Dollar 1 as at 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Tenge
462.65 per 1 US Dollar).

In general, the economy of the Republic of Kazakhstan continues to display characteristics of an
emerging market. Additionally, the Company’s industry in the Republic of Kazakhstan is impacted
by political, legislative, fiscal, and regulatory developments. Uncertainty remains in relation to the
exchange rate of Tenge and commodity prices.

The economic environment has a significant impact on the Company's operations and financial
position. Management believes it is taking appropriate measures to support the sustainability and
growth of the Company's business in the current circumstances. The long-term effects of the current
economic situation are difficult to predict, and management’s current expectations and estimates
could differ from the actual results. The prospects for future economic stability in the Republic of
Kazakhstan are largely dependent upon the effectiveness of economic measures undertaken by the

government, together with legal and political developments, which are beyond the Company’s
control.

Basis of accounting

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
(“IFRS™) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the initial recognition of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI™). The Company also
carries out initial recognition of insurance contracts, issued and held reinsurance contracts in
accordance with the Methodology for the Classification and Segmentation of Insurance and
Reinsurance contracts that regulates the procedure for their initial recognition.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These

policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. Refer to
Note 3.

In general, the Company does not include in its disclosures of accounting policies that relate to items
that the Company does not have in its balance sheet or statement of profit or loss.

These financial statements are prepared for the primary users, which are the shareholder, the
Regulator, and the Company's clients. In these financial statements it is assumed that primary users
have reasonable knowledge of business and economic activities and have diligently verified and
reviewed the information. At times, even well-informed and diligent users may need to seek the aid
of an adviser to understand information about complex economic phenomena specified in these
financial statements.

The objective of financial statements is to provide these primary users with financial information that
is useful to them. Management tries not to reduce the understandability of these financial statements
by obscuring material information by immaterial information. Accordingly, only significant
accounting policies are disclosed, where appropriate, in the relevant disclosure notes.

Use of estimates and judgments

While preparing these financial statements, management applied judgments, assumptions and
estimates that affect the application of accounting policies and the amounts of assets, liabilities,

income, and expenses presented in the financial information. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The critical judgments made by management in applying the Company's accounting policies and the
key sources of estimation uncertainty are the same as those described in the most recent annual
financial statements, except as disclosed in this note.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates. The functional currency of the Company and the Company’s presentation currency is the
national currency of Kazakhstan, Kazakhstani Tenge (‘Tenge’).

Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

(a) Insurance and reinsurance

The following amendments to the standards and interpretations became effective for the Company
starting 1 January 2023:

® On 1 January 2023, the Company adopted IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”. The sections below
explain in more detail the changes made to accounting policies.

Definition and classification

The Company classifies insurance (reinsurance) contracts as follows:

1) at initial recognition;
2) in case of modification;
3) upon transition to IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts.

A contract is classified by the Company for accounting purposes as an insurance contract only if it
transfers from the policyholder to the Company significant insurance risk that could result in a loss
to the Company under the contract.

A contract is considered to have transferred significant insurance risk if, and only if the insured event
could result in the Company having to pay additional amounts that would be significant in any single
scenario, excluding scenarios which have no commercial substance (i.e., no significant influence on
the economic essence of the transaction). If an insured event could mean significant additional
amounts would be payable in any scenario that has commercial substance, the condition in the
previous sentence can be met even if the insured event is extremely unlikely, or even if the expected
(i.e. probability-weighted) present value of the contingent cash flows is a small proportion of the
expected present value of the remaining cash flows from the insurance contract.

The Company considers the value of the additional amount payable against the cash outflow under
the contract on a present value basis in a scenario where the insured event had not occurred.

The additional amount payable is equal to the difference between the maximum amount payable
upon the occurrence of an insured event and the maximum amount payable if the insured event had
not occurred.

If the ratio of the present value of the additional amount payable to the present value of the contractual
cash outflow under the scenario if the insured event had not occurred is 5% or less, the insurance risk
is considered insignificant in accordance with market practice. If this ratio exceeds 5%, the contract
is considered to have ceded significant insurance risk.

Based on the classification results, the Company divides insurance (reinsurance) contracts concluded
in the legal form of insurance contracts into:
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

1) insurance contracts classified as insurance contracts in accordance with the requirements of
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™.

2) reinsurance contracts held classified as insurance contracts in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™.

3) reinsurance contracts issued classified as insurance contracts in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™.

All contracts issued by the Company fall within the scope of IFRS 17.

There are no contracts with an investment component or investment return services in the Company.
Level of aggregation of insurance contracts

The Company defines portfolios of insurance contracts and issued reinsurance contracts subject to
similar risks in terms of the combination of insurance rules and types of insurance, as well as taking

into account approaches to managing insurance contracts and issued reinsurance contracts from the
point of view of underwriting, administration, and claims settlement.

Due to the nature of its business, the Company undertakes underwriting, administration, and claims
settlement of each contract on an individual basis. In this regard, the Company has determined that
the portfolio consists of one insurance contract or reinsurance contract held (issued), and the
accounting unit is the contract. This is because the counter-partners have many different
characteristics: the country of the supplier, the type of activity of the insured, lending for working
capital or for a start-up, different financial indicators of the insured, different objects of collateral,
different credit score.

For contracts assessed by the General Measurement Model (GMM), the Company has determined
the level of detail based on which cash flows are constructed and the profitability of contracts is
analysed at the level of an individual insurance contract.

An insurance contract is onerous at the date of initial recognition if the cash flows to fulfill it, any
previously recognised cash flows from acquiring the contract, and any cash flows arising from the
contract at the date of initial recognition represent a net outflow. Loss on onerous insurance contracts
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

For contracts measured using the Premium Allocation Approach (PAA), the Company has
determined the level of detail upon which premium is allocated at the individual insurance contract
level. For these contracts, at their initial recognition, the Company analyses the facts and
circumstances that indicate that there are indications of onerousness, along with an analysis of the
likelihood of changes in the relevant facts and circumstances, to determine whether it is not

significantly probable that contracts that at the time of initial recognition are not onerous. will
subsequently become burdensome.

At the reporting date, onerous insurance contracts are present only in the loan insurance class.
Initial recognition

Before the Company accounts for an insurance contract based on the guidance in IFRS 17, the

Company reviews the contracts to identify components that would be within the scope of other
standards if they were separate contracts.

IFRS 17 distinguishes three categories of components that have to be accounted for separately:
® cash flows relating to embedded derivatives that are required to be separated;;

® cash flows relating to distinct investment components; and

° promises to transfer distinct goods or distinct non-insurance services.

The Company applies IFRS 17 to all other components of the contract. The Company does not have
contracts that require further disaggregation or combination of insurance contracts.
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To select a method for accounting and measuring an insurance contract in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 17, the Company assesses the boundaries of the contracts. For contracts where
the contract boundary is more than one year, the Company measures the applicability of the premium
allocation approach by analyzing whether there is significant variability in the cash flows for the
fulfillment of contracts and analyzing significant differences in the result of applying PAA compared
to applying GMM.

Where there is no significant variability in fulfillment cash flows and significant differences in the
result of applying PAA from applying GMM, the Company applies the PAA method. Based on the
results of the test for contracts other than Loan insurance, the Company applies the PAA method.
The test was carried out using the most critical scenarios. The Insurance Company has identified the
following input data necessary to test the selected units of account and adjust the model in accordance
with business needs: contract validity period: premium amount under the insurance contract; the
amount of acquisition costs under the insurance contract; risk adjustment for non-financial risks; loss
ratio under the insurance contract; percentage of expenses (loss settlement, administration, etc.).

An insurance contract issued is initially recognised from the earliest of the following (i) the beginning
of the coverage period, (ii) the date when the first payment from a policyholder becomes due, or (iii)
for an onerous contract, when the contract becomes onerous.

An approach to the measurement of insurance contracts, reinsurance contracts issued and held.
1. Loan insurance contracts.
a)  Liability for remaining coverage

The Company measures loan insurance contracts and reinsurance contracts on insurance of loan
using the GMM method; non-loan insurance contracts and the reinsurance contracts issued under
them are valued using the PAA method. An insurance contract under GMM is initially measured as
the sum of the fulfilment cash flows (which include estimated future cash flows, an adjustment for
the time value of money and financial risks associated with future cash flows, and risk adjustment
for non-financial risk) and contractual service margin (CSM; unearned profit that will be recognised
as services are provided under insurance contract).

At the end of each subsequent reporting period, the carrying amount of the insurance contract is
remeasured and represents the sum of:

° assets or liabilities for remaining insurance coverage, which combines the cash flow
attributable to future services and the margin for the contractual services provided at that date;
and

@ assets or liabilities for incurred claims, which are measured as the fulfilment cash flows

attributable to past services allocated to the contract at that date.

The Company measures fulfillment cash flows for each contract based on the following expected
assumptions: The GMM model takes into account PD/LGD for each policyholder, considering its
financial indicators, which reflect credit risks. Political risk is defined equal to 1, because loan
insurance is provided for policyholders who are residents of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The probability of default (PD) is determined based on the credit rating of the counterparty. Since
there is no sufficient default statistics for the Company, rating methods of international rating
agencies are used to determine the credit rating. Rating methodologies describe the analytical
framework that rating committees use to assign ratings. They describe the key qualitative and
quantitative characteristics that are typically most important for measuring credit risk in a particular
industry.
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o 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Aaa 0.00% | 0.02% | 002% | 002% | 002% | 0.02% | _0.02% | 002% | 002% | 0.02%
Aal 0.00% | 000% | 0.00% | _0.00% | _0.02% | _0.07% | _008% | _0.08% | _0.11% | _0.18%
A2 0.00% | 001% | 0.12% | __024% | 032% | 041% | 0.50% | 0.61% | _0.74% | 0.86%
Aa3 0.04% | 012% | 0.16% | 024% | _037% | 0.52% | 073% | _08%% | 101% | 1.11%
Al 0.09% | 019% | 033% | 050% | _0.71% | _093% | _1.12% | 131% | 147% | 164%
A2 0.06% | 0.17% | 034% | 049% | _0.70% | _1.01% | 132% | 164% | 201% | 2.45%
A3 006% | 0.17% | 035% | 053% | 0.79% | _0.98% | 124% | 153% | 187% | 221%
Baal 0.10% | 0.26% | 043% | 061% | _075% | 097% | LI8% | 146% | 181% | 2.22%
Baa2 0.18% | 041% | 0.67% | 090% | _110% | _131% | 152% | 175% | 206% | 235%
Baa3 029% | 067% | L13% | 166% | _222% | 2.68% | 3.13% | 3.76% | 437% | 502%
Bal 042% | 132% | 228% | 3.18% | 429% | 5.38% | 638% | 725% | 806% | 894%
Ba2 0.73% | 1.88% | 324% | 457% | _603% | 7.29% | 847% | 9.76% | 1124% | 12.87%
Ba3 093% | 2.53% | 4.38% | 648% | _8.18% | 9.78% | 1162% | 13.70% | 15.75% | 17.86%
Bl 122% | 3.72% | 650% | 938% | 1199% | 14.42% | 1694% | 19.29% | 21.30% | 23.11%
B2 273% | 708% | 11.67% | 16.05% | 19.67% | 2291% | 25.65% | 28.02% | 30.72% | 33.38%
B3 3.53% | 8.69% | 14.32% | 1924% | 23.44% | 27.06% | 30.10% | 33.12% | 36.04% | 38.39%
Caal 4.16% | 9.75% | 1530% | 2037% | 25.12% | 29.24% | 32.61% | 35.52% | 38.58% | 41.32%
Can2 6.65% | 13.15% | 19.16% | 24.68% | 20.65% | 34.11% | 38.04% | 4191% | 45.10% | 47.51%
Caa 17.44% | 29.58% | 38.07% | 43.83% | 48.67% | 53.33% | 57.25% | 60.75% | 6296% | 64.62%
Ca 34.46% | 47.45% | 56.56% | 6331% | 6643% | 67.50% | 69.66% | 71.19% | 7233% | 72.83%
C 3446% | 4745% | 56.56% | 63.31% | 66.43% | 67.50% | 69.66% | 71.19% | 72.33% | 72.83%
IG 0.11% | 027% | 046% | 0.66% | 08%% | L11% |  135% | 162% | 191% | 222%
SG 4.10% | 829% | 1226% | 15.78% | 18.80% | 21.39% | 23.67% | 25.77% | 27.80% | 29.66%
All L77% | 3.52% | 5.13% | 6.50% | 7.64% | 8.60% | 9.42% | 10.19% | 10.94% | 11.63%

* Including Russian issuers

® Loss Given Default (LGD). LGD on collateralized loans is calculated in accordance with
collateral information and liquidity ratios provided by NBRK Rules No. 269. LGD for loans
without collateral is 100%. This is because in the absence of collateral, the Company has no
chance of recovering losses from the defaulting policyholder. If there is property to be
distributed following a bankruptcy, then the insurance line will not be first in line for
distribution, thus such a decision was made for a more conservative approach.

Collateral type Liquidity ratio
Real estate (residential, commercial, land plots) 0.7
Vehicles 0.5
Equipment, inventory 0.4

Guarantees of second-tier banks, entities of the quasi-public sector or legal
entities with a rating not lower than the sovereign rating of the RoK
Guarantees of other legal entities or individuals

Property/money that will be received in the future

Highly liquid securities 0.9
Cash, contribution/deposit

* Source: Resolution of the Management Board of the NBRK No. 269 (p.17)

° Exposure at default (EAD) is the principal balance at the reporting date, reduced by the amount
of the reported but not settled claims on the next payments. formed as part of the liability for
losses incurred at the reporting date.

th ||| —

The costs of attracting and maintaining contracts per unit of insurance contract are distributed on a
systematic and rational basis. The Company does not have direct acquisition cash flows under

insurance contracts. Indirect acquisition cash flows are recognised by the Company as the support of
contracts costs.

All expenses of the Company for the reporting period (year), except for the payroll fund (salaries and
corresponding tax deductions, remunerations), must be broken down by item of expense, indicating
the name of the account and the amount of expenses. For determining whether certain expense items
fall within the scope of IFRS 17, the resulting expense items are subsequently subject to
classification. Based on the results of the classification, the Company’s expenses are broken down
into:

° attributable expenses (taking into account systematic and rational allocation (“SRA™)) and
directly attributable expenses (without taking into account SRA);

° acquisition and non-acquisition expenses.
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To optimise the time spent on allocating non-essential expenses that require an SRA, the Company
has defined 2 thresholds of significance:

1) threshold 1 —0.5% of the amount of all expenses incurred in the reporting period;
2) threshold 2 — 10% of the amount of all expenses incurred in the reporting period.

If the value of the expense item that requires SRA is below threshold 1, then the Company does not
include this expense in the expense allocation and assigns it directly to expense. If all expenses below
threshold 1 in total are above threshold 2, then expenses exceeding threshold 2 will be allocated
systematically and will be considered in allocation.

© The Company measures discounted cash flows taking into account the probability of default,
contract termination and indexation of the support of contracts costs.

The head of each business unit, based on the results of a survey among employees of his/her unit fills
out a matrix of engagement in the Company’s processes that relate to insurance contracts in order to
display the aggregated percentage of employee engagement in each process. The percentage of
engagement of each business unit in individual processes of the Company represents the time spent
for the reporting year in percentage terms, without reference to a specific insurance product or
employee of the Company. The total percentage of engagement for each business unit is 100%. The
amount of acquisition costs (including SRA) that are attributed to each business unit is determined
as the amount of acquisition costs (including SRA) per 1 employee of the Company, multiplied by
the number of employees of this business unit. and the sum of monthly wages of employees of this
business unit, multiplied by the number of months in the reporting period.

b)  Liability for incurred claims

If there are indications of default for loan insurance contracts (PD=100%), the Company
derecognises liability for remaining coverage and creates additional reserves for incurred but not
reported claims (IBNR) in the amount of expected loss given default (LGD) and claim settlement
expenses. At the same time, upon “recovery” (default exit) of the loan insurance contract, the liability
for incurred claims is derecognised due to the withdrawal of the statement of loss, and the liability
for the remaining coverage is re-formed.

When a loss is declared for the full amount of the balance of the principal debt, the Company
derecognises liability for remaining coverage and forms an additional liability for claims incurred in
the amount of the balance of the principal debt. The Company's methodology for the formation of
the reserves for reported but not settled claims (RBNS) remains unchanged compared to IFRS 4.
Since LIC is formed for the amount of overdue payment or for the amount of the balance of the
principal debt without taking into account incoming cash flows associated with compensation of
losses and sales of collateral, the Company does not create Risk adjustment and, accordingly, does
not increase the liability for incurred claims by the risk adjustment.

The Company does not take into account the time value of money when measuring liability for
incurred claims, given the insignificance of the discounting effect for a loss settlement period of up
to one year. To determine the significance of the discounting effect, an analysis of the loss settlement
period was carried out, which comprised a period of less than a year.

2. Insurance contracts other than loan insurance contracts.
a)  Liability for remaining coverage

Liability for remaining coverage using the PAA method is measured at initial recognition at premium
received less acquisition cash flows at that date, unless the Company choose to recognise these
payments as expenses and any amounts arising from derecognition at that date: (i) any asset in
relation to acquisition cash flows; and (ii) any other asset or liability previously recognised in respect
of the cash flows associated with the group of contracts. The Company does not have direct
acquisition cash flows under insurance contracts.

For contracts with a decreasing sum insured, the Company takes into account the risk allocation
model over time when measuring revenue.
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b)  Liability for incurred claims

The Company's methodology for LIC has remained unchanged compared to IFRS 4. Since RBNS is
formed for the amount of the overdue payment or for the amount of the remaining principal debt
without taking into account cash inflows associated with compensation of losses and the sale of
collateral, the Company does not create Risk adjustment and, accordingly, does not increase the
liability for incurred claims by risk adjustment.

The Company does not take into account the time value of money when measuring liability for
incurred claims, taking into account the claim settlement period of up to one year.

4, Reinsurance contracts issued under loan insurance contracts and other than loan insurance
contracts

a)  Liability for remaining coverage

The Company measures liability for remaining coverage using the PAA method for reinsurance
contracts under contracts other than loan insurance contracts with a term of more than a year, for
which, as a result of testing for the applicability of PAA for the underlying insurance contracts
covered by the reinsurance contract, there are no significant differences in the result of applying PAA
from applying GMM.

Liability for remaining coverage using the PAA method is measured at initial recognition at
reinsurance premiums paid less acquisition cash flows (ceding commissions) at that date, unless the
Company choose to recognise these payments as expenses and any amounts arising from
derecognition at the date of: (i) any asset in relation to acquisition cash flows; and (ii) any other asset
or liability previously recognised for the cash flows associated with the contract. The Company
reduces liability for remaining coverage under held loan reinsurance contracts by the amount of the
reinsurer's credit risk.

For reinsurance contracts under loan insurance contracts, the Company uses the GMM method. A
reinsurance contract under GMM s initially measured as the product of the reinsurer's share
multiplied by the sum of the fulfillment cash flows (which include estimated future cash flows, an
adjustment for the time value of money and financial risks associated with future cash flows, and
risk adjustment for non-financial risk) and contractual service margin (CSM; unearned profit that
will be recognised as services are provided under insurance contracts).

The share of recovery under reinsurance contracts is adjusted to the credit risk of the reinsurer:

Share of recovery=Re%*(1- [PDre*(1- [RRre)) where: Re% — the percentage of reinsurance under
the contract, PDre — the probability of default of the reinsurer, depending on the remaining validity
period of the insurance contract, RRre — the recovery rate under the reinsurance contract.

To analyse counterparty credit risk, the Company uses credit ratings provided by credit agencies.

Further, based on these ratings, the Company receives the level of cumulative PD and the recovery
rate for each reinsurer individually, because there are few reinsurers in the Company.

At the end of each subsequent reporting period. the carrying amount of the reinsurance contract is
remeasured and represents the sum of:

° assets or liabilities for the remaining insurance coverage. which combine the cash flow
attributable to future services and the contractual service margin under the contract at that date;
and

& assets or liabilities for incurred claims, which are measured as the fulfillment cash flow

attributable to past services allocated to the contract at that date.
b)  Liability for incurred claims

The Company's methodology for the RBNS claims under reinsurance contracts held remained
unchanged compared to IFRS 4. Since RBNS is formed for the amount of the reinsurer's share in the
overdue payment or for the reinsuret's shate in the amount of the remaining principal debt without
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taking into account cash inflows associated with reversal of losses from the insured and the sale of
collateral, the Company does not create Risk adjustment and, accordingly, does not increase the
liability for incurred claims by the risk adjustment.

The Company does not take into account the time value of money when measuring liability for
incurred claims, taking into account the claim settlement period of up to one year.

The Company uses different measurement techniques depending on the type of contract, in
particular:

Classification Measurement technique

Insurance contracts issued
and reinsurance contracts
issued

Loan insurance General measurement

model

Insurance contracts classified as
insurance contracts in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 17
“Insurance Contracts™

Insurance against other
financial losses

Premium allocation
approach

Insurance contracts classified as
insurance contracts in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 17

Insurance of losses of .
“Insurance Contracts™

financial organizations

Other voluntary insurance

Reinsurance contracts held

Insurance classes other than
loan insurance

Reinsurance contracts held

Premium allocation
approach

Loan insurance

Reinsurance contracts held

General measurement

model

Insurance finance income and expenses

Insurance finance income or expenses comprises the change in the carrying amount of the group of
insurance contracts arising from:

° the effect of the time value of money and changes in the time value of money: and
° the effect of financial risk and changes in financial risk;

The Company disaggregates the change in risk adjustment for non-financial risk into an amount
attributable to the outcome of insurance services and an amount attributable to finance income or
insurance expenses.

The Company includes finance income or expenses on insurance (reinsurance) within the profit or
loss of the reporting period.

When applying IAS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” to insurance contracts
that generate cash flows in a foreign currency, the Company takes into account these contracts,
including the contractual service margin.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of insurance contracts, including the
contractual service margin, is translated into the functional currency at the closing rate. The Company
chose to present the resulting exchange rate differences as “finance expenses under insurance
contracts™.
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Significant judgements

Areas in which management applies significant judgments:

1.

The Company applies judgment in determining qualitative indicators, as well as quantitative
indicators in the absence of available financial statements of the counterparty and in
determining the indications of default of the counterparty. These indicators determine the

credit rating of the counterparty, and accordingly PD indicators, which are a key factor in
measuring liabilities.

For insurance contracts with a contract boundary of more than one year. for which the
Company uses the PAA method instead of GMM., the Company must conduct a test for the
applicability of this technique. Judgment may be required, for example, in determining the
threshold at which the estimate will differ significantly. The company determined the

materiality threshold in a relative value equal to 10% compared to the liability using the GMM
method.

Judgments on the expected combined loss ratio are made in analyzing the facts and
circumstances that indicate that contracts are assessed to be onerous and assessing whether it
is probable that contracts that are not onerous at initial recognition will subsequently become
onerous.

In estimating future cash flows, the Company performs a cost analysis to determine the cost
items associated with fulfilling contracts and the extent to which fixed and variable overhead
costs are directly related to fulfilling contracts. Judgments are applied when determining the
extent of employee engagement in business processes related to the fulfillment of insurance
contracts, as well as determining methods for the systematic and rational allocation of these
costs under insurance contracts.

In determining the methods for the transition to IFRS 17, the Company determined that, for
all insurance contracts in force at the date of transition, most reasonable and supportable
information was available to apply the modified retrospective approach, which approximates
the retrospective approach as closely as possible. Accordingly, the Company recognised and
measured each insurance contract and each asset for acquisition cash flows as if it had always
applied IFRS 17, and derecognised any existing balances that would not have existed if [FRS
17 had always been applied and recorded any the resulting net difference in equity.

The Company applied a modified retrospective approach to insurance contracts at the
transition date. At initial recognition, a CSM is calculated based on assumptions at the time of
recognition and taking into account actual fulfillment cash flows up to the transition date.

Estimates and assumptions

Examples of estimates and assumptions are as follows:

1.

Discount rate.

A “top-down” approach was used to determine discount rates for cash flows that do not vary with
the yields on the underlying items of all other contracts within the scope of IFRS 17. In this approach,
the discount rate is defined as the yield implicit in a fair value measurement of a reference portfolio,
adjusted for the difference between the reference portfolio of assets and the corresponding cash flow
obligations. The reference portfolio has been compiled based on the Company's portfolio at the

reporting date and includes a combination of government and corporate bonds available in the
market.

The resulting discount rate curve in the top-down method is determined by the formula as follows:

Discount rate = Entity’s portfolio rate — Credit risk

where, Discount rate — the resulting curve of spot discount rates;
Entity’s portfolio rate — the market yield curve of the underlying portfolio as of the reporting date;
Credit risk — credit risk curve, which is the sum of ECL and UCL.

Liquidity adjustments are treated by reducing the rate of return on the portfolio.
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Calculation of the market yield curve of the underlying portfolio.

The underlying portfolio is formed from government and corporate bonds that are part of the
Insurance Company's investment portfolio as of the reporting date, denominated in national
currency. Inclusion of exclusively bonds in the underlying portfolio is contingent upon the
predictability of their prices and the similarity of regular coupon payments with the

characteristics of cash flows under insurance contracts, which meets the requirements of [IFRS
7

To discount cash flows under insurance contracts issued in a foreign currency, the risk-free
rate with volatility adjustment, established by the European Insurance and Occupational
Pensions Authority (the “EIOPA”™) at the reporting date separately for each currency, where
the risk-free rate of return is a “bottom-up” approach.

The yield of bonds included in the underlying portfolio is determined based on the market
yield or indicative yield (in the absence of market yield) of the security on the valuation date,
which is published on the official website of Kazakhstan Stock Exchange JSC (the “KASE™)
in the “Market Valuation™ section.

The final market yield curve of the underlying portfolio is formed using the Nelson-Siegel
model and the Excel “Goal seek™ function.

Credit risk calculation

Credit risk comprises two main components: expected credit losses (ECL) and unexpected
credit losses (UCL).

Expected credit losses are calculated using the formula:

ECL=PD* LGD*EAD

where, PD — the non-cumulative probability of default of the issuer in the corresponding
period;

LGD — loss given default of the issuer;

EAD — the exposure at default of the issuer.

Cumulative default rates (CPD rates) for 10 years by year in the context of issuer credit ratings.
separately for the corporate and public sectors, are published on the official website of the
Moody's rating agency and updated annually in February.

Discount rates applied to estimates of future cash flows:

reflect the time value of money. the characteristics of the cash flow and the liquidity
characteristics of the insurance contracts;

consistent with observable current market prices (if any) for financial instruments with cash
flows whose characteristics are consistent with those of the insurance contracts, in terms of,
for example, timing, currency and liquidity; and:

exclude the effect of factors that influence such observable market prices but do not affect the
future cash flows of the insurance contracts.

To optimise resources and obtain universal results of ECL and UCL values, the Insurance Company
carries out calculations, taking into account that EAD is equal to one. The Insurance Company also
adopted the simplification that the carrying amount of the bond does not decrease as it matures, which
in turn is a conservative approach. These simplifications make it possible to simplify calculations
without compromising the accuracy of the measurement.

To determine materiality, UCL was calculated, reflected in the table below. As it can be seen from
the table, the difference between ECL and UCL is not significant.
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1 2 3 4 5 6
Entity's portfolio 2023 15,65% |14,58% [13,64% [12,96% |12,49% (12,15%
ECL 0,01% |0,14% 0,11% |0,11% 0,12% |0,15%
UCL 0,13% |0,14% 0,13% |0,08% 0,08% |0,08%
Credit risk(ECL% + UCL%) 0,14% |0,28% 0,24% 10,19% 0,20% |0,23%
Discount Rate Top Down 15,51% [14,30% [13,40% |[12,77% |12,29% (11,92%
IFRS 17 discount rate by UCL formula 15,51% [14,30% [13,40% [12,77% |12,29% [11,92%

Since the difference between expected credit losses and unexpected credit losses is insignificant in
relation to the yield of the underlying portfolio and does not exceed 10 basis points, when calculating
the discount rate, the Company applied the assumption that UCL=ECL. This assumption simplifies
calculations without compromising the accuracy of the estimate, since the resulting effect on the
discount rate is insignificant, including the total effect.

The yield curve has been adjusted to eliminate both expected and unexpected credit risk.

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Entity’s portfolio 2023 15.65% | 14.58% | 13.64% | 12.96% | 12.49% | 12.15%
ECL 0.01% 0.14% 0.11% 0.11% 0.12% 0.15%
UCL=ECL 0.01% 0.14% 0.11% 0.11% 0.12% 0.15%
Credit risk(ECL% + UCL%) 0.01% 0.29% 0.22% 0.22% 0.25% 0.30%
Discount Rate Top Down 15.63% | 14.30% | 13.42% | 12.74% | 12.24% | 11.86% | 11.71% | 11.56% | 11.41% | 11.27%
IFRS 17 disount rate by UCL=ECL | 15.63% | 14.30% | 13.42% | 12.74% | 12.24% | 11.86% | 11.71% | 11.56% | 11.41% | 11.27%

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Spot rate 15.63% | 14.30% | 1342% | 12.74% | 12.24% | 11.86% | 11.71% | 11.56% | 11.41% | 1127%
Forward rate 15.63% | 12.98% | 11.70% | 10.70% | 10.27% 9.96% | 10.83% | 10.53% | 10.24% 9.95%

The forward rate is used for calculations in the general model. As the rates obtained by Nelson-Siegel
calculations are spot rates, i.c.. rates are defined as annually at the same rate (for example, a rate of
14.3% indicates that the annual rate of 14.3% was for both years). By converting it to forward rate.
we take into account the rates of previous periods (in this case, in the first year the rate is 15.63%.
and in the second year 12.98%. which will correspond to 14.3% for two years).

Frn = ((1+Srm)"n/(1+ Fr1)*(1+ Fr2)*...*(1+ Frn-1)) - 1
where, Fr — forward rate,

Sr — spot rate,

n — period.

For contracts issued within one calendar year, the discount rate curves at the beginning of the relevant
calendar year were used to simplify the estimation at the time of initial recognition.

3. Risk adjustment for non-financial risk.

To determine the risk adjustment for non-financial risk, a method of stochastic modeling of the
probability of default and losses given default was used, taking into account the contract term.
counterparty credit rating and LGD level. The risk adjustment is determined with a confidence
interval level of 75%. Calculation of the risk adjustment for liabilities for the remaining coverage,
the Insurance Company calculates only for loan insurance contracts, since the GMM estimation
technique is used only for this line of business.

The Company has developed a Matrix of Calculated Risk Adjustments, broken down by contract
duration, Moody's external credit rating, selected LGD intervals depending on the type of EAD
(constant or linearly decreasing). The Insurance Company estimates cash flows for each Moody's
credit rating and for various contract terms (from 1 to 10 years) based on the following expected
indicators:

° Cumulative PD for 10 years is calculated in accordance with the rating received. Cumulative
default rates (CPD rates) for 10 years by year in the context of issuer credit ratings, separately
for the corporate and public sectors, are published on the official website of the Moody's rating
agency and updated annually in February.
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® Loss Given Default (LGD). LGD is calculated based on the collateral, taking into account the
liquidity ratios of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan (NBRK) to the amount of
the gross carrying amount of the loan. The list of liquidity ratios of the NBRK is reflected in
the Resolution of the Board of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan dated 22
December 2017 No. 269 “On approval of the Rules for the creation of provisions (reserves) in
accordance with international financial reporting standards and the requirements of the
legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan on accounting and financial reporting™.

To calculate the risk adjustment. the Insurance Company randomises the following assumptions: PD,
LGD and cost inflation:

1) Torandomise PD, the Insurance Company applies the normal inverse distribution, where

° a random number from 0 to 1 is used as the probability corresponding to the normal
distribution,
L the conditional marginal probability of default (conditional marginal PD) is used as the

arithmetic mean distribution),

° to find the standard deviation of the distribution, Moody's historical data for the period from
1983-2021 is used

2)  Torandomise LGD, the Insurance Company uses the normal inverse distribution, where

° as a probability the same random number (from 0 to 1) is used as was used to randomise the
PD,
» the corresponding LGD is used as the arithmetic mean of the distribution,
° the following formula is used to find the standard deviation of the distribution:
2 _ LGD=#(1-LGD)
CLen = 4

3)  To randomise cost inflation, the Insurance Company applies the normal inverse distribution,
where

® a random number from 0 to 1, separate from PD and LGD, is used as the probability
corresponding to the normal distribution,

° expected cost inflation is used as the arithmetic mean of the distribution,
° the standard deviation of cost inflation is used as the standard deviation of distribution.

4)  Following that, to calculate the risk adjustment for a certain level of LGD (0%, 5%, 15%. ...
:95%., 100%), 1000 iterations of the sum of cash flows are generated and the 75th percentile
and average are calculated.

As a result, the Risk Adjustment (in %) is calculated as (the ratio of the 75th percentile to the average
value - 1).

Thus, Risk Adjustment Matrices were obtained for each Moody's credit rating, for a certain contract
period (from 1 to 10 years) and for LGD levels (0%, 5%, 15%, ... ,95%, 100%).

Outward reinsurance asselts

The Company cedes a part of insurance and inward reinsurance risks in the normal course of business
for the purpose of limiting its potential net loss through the diversification of its risks. Assets,
liabilities, income, and expense arising from ceded reinsurance contracts are presented separately
from the related assets, liabilities, income, and expense from the related insurance contracts because
the reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its direct obligations to its
policyholders.

Only those rights under contracts that give rise to significant transfer of insurance risk are accounted
for as reinsurance assets. Rights under contracts that do not transfer significant insurance risk are
accounted for as financial instruments.
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Reinsurance premiums for ceded reinsurance are recognised as an expense on a basis that is consistent
with the recognition basis for the premiums on the related insurance contracts. For general insurance
business, reinsurance premiums are expensed over the period that the reinsurance cover is provided
based on the expected pattern of the reinsured risks. The unexpensed portion of ceded reinsurance
premiums is included in reinsurance assets.

The amounts recognised as reinsurance assets are measured on a basis that is consistent with the
measurement of the provisions held in respect of the related insurance contracts. Reinsurance assets
include reinsurance receivables due from reinsurance companies for the claims paid. These are
classified as assets for incurred claims under reinsurance contracts held and are defined as the
reinsurers' share of the claim reserves under insurance contracts in the statement of financial position,
covered by these reinsurance contracts, adjusted for the credit risk of the reinsurer.

The net amounts paid to a reinsurer at the inception of a contract may be less than the reinsurance
assets recognised by the Company in respect of its rights under such contracts.

Commission expenses under insurance contracts

Commission expenses include direct costs such as commissions paid to insurance agents and brokers
and indirect costs such as administrative expenses connected with the processing of proposals and
the issuing of policies.

Commission expenses are expensed as incurred. The expenses are also taken into account separately
for each contract.

Transition to new or revised standards and interpretations

Certain new standards and interpretations to standards became effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application is permitted. However, the Company did not
adopt early new and amended standards in preparing these financial statements.

The following new standards and the amendments became effective from 1 January 2023:

) IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts™ (issued on 18 May 2017 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after | January 2023).

° Amendments to [FRS 17 and an amendment to IFRS 4 (issued on 25 June 2020 and effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

° Transition option to insurers applying IFRS 17 — Amendments to IFRS 17 (issued on 9
December 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

The transition to the new standard had a significant impact on the Company. The notes to these
financial statements present the effect of adoption of IFRS 17.

° Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2: Disclosure of Accounting policies
(issued on 12 February 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023). The amendments resulted in changes in the presentation of these financial statements,

mainly through eliminating immaterial accounting policies that do not provide material
information about accounting policies.

® Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates (issued on 12 February 2021 and
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023).

° Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction — Amendments
to IAS 12 (issued on 7 May 2021 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023).

° Amendments to IAS 12 Income taxes: International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
(issued 23 May 2023).

Unless otherwise stated above. the adoption of the above amendments had no significant impact on
the Company's financial statements.
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New accounting pronouncements

Certain new standards and interpretations have been issued that are mandatory for the annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 or later, and which the Company has not early adopted:

° Amendments to IFRS 16 Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (issued on 22
September 2022 and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

) Classification of liabilities as current or non-current— Amendments to IAS 1 (originally issued
on 23 January 2020 and subsequently amended on 15 July 2020 and 31 October 2022,
ultimately effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024).

° Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures: Supplier Finance Arrangements (Issued on 25 May 2023).

Unless otherwise stated above, the new standards and interpretations are not expected to have a
significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Insurance risk management

This section summarises insurance risks and the way the Company manages them.
Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating insurance risk
The Company’s management of insurance is a critical aspect of the business.

The primary insurance and reinsurance activity carried out by the Company assumes the risk of loss
from persons or organisations that are directly subject to the risk. Such risks may relate to property.,
liabilities, accidents, freight, financial or other perils that may arise from an insured event. As such
the Company is exposed to the uncertainty surrounding the timing and severity of claims under the
contract.

The Company manages its insurance risk through underwriting limits, approval procedures for
transactions that involve new products or that exceed set limits, pricing guidelines, centralised
management of reinsurance and monitoring of emerging issues.

The theory of probability is applied to the pricing and provisioning for insurance contracts. The
principal risk is that the frequency and severity of claims is greater than expected. Insurance events
are, by their nature, random, and the actual number and size of events during any one year may vary
from those estimated using established statistical techniques.

An analysis of loss development is presented below. As it can be seen from the table below, there
are liabilities for reported cases in 2023 and 2022. In 2022, large amounts were paid to three
counterparties, and in 2023 to six counterparties.

The loss triangle was formed based on the payment journal, in accordance with the year of the
statement of losses and the year of settlement. Also. liabilities for incurred insured claims as of the
reporting date are treated in accordance with the date of the statement of loss. From 2016 to 2021,
claims are fully settled according to the table.

Analysis of the loss development for 2023 (gross) - total

KZT000 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total
Estimation of the

cumulative loss

At the end of the year of

loss 1,079,291 635,838 - 213,587 5,367 2,234,325 3.079.416 17,403,115 17,403,115
- one vear later 1,785,232 637,381 46 1,408,742 241,795 2,240 895 13,589,576 - 13,589,576
- two vears later 1,802,153 658,024 46 1,408,742 241,795 2,240,895 - - 2,240,895
- three vears later 1,803,183 697,637 46 1,408 742 241,795 - - - 241,795
- four years later 1,803,183 697.637 46 1,408,742 - - - - 1,408,742
- five vears later 1,803,183 697,637 46 - - - - 46
- six years later 1,803,183 697.637 - - = - 697,637
- seven years later 1,803,183 - - - - = 1,803,183
Estimated cumulative loss

as of 31 December 2023 1,803,183 697,637 46 1,408,742 241,795 2,240,895 13,589,576 17,403,115 -
Cumulative payments as of

31 December 2023 1,803,183 697,637 46 1,408,742 241,795 2,240,895 12,782,494 292,962

Total liability for

unsettled claims as of 31

December 2023 - - - - - - 807,082 | 17,110,153 | 17,917,235
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Underwriting strategy

The Company’s underwriting strategy seeks diversity to ensure a balanced portfolio and is based on

a large portfolio of various risks over a number of years and, as such, it is believed that this reduces
the variability of the outcome.

The underwriting strategy is set out in the business plan that sets out the classes of business to be
written, the territories in which business is to be written and the industry sectors to which the
Company is prepared to underwrite.

Calculation of the tariffs and prices on insurance products reflects current market conditions and
covers the most probable assumptions necessary for the adjustment of future results, aiming to
significantly mitigate financial risks.

Adherence to the underwriting authorities is being monitored by management on an on-going basis.
Those transactions requiring special authorisation are subject to consideration and approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors.

Reinsurance strategy

The Company reinsures a portion of the risks it underwrites to control its exposures to losses and
ensure financial stability. The Company buys facultative and obligatory based reinsurance to reduce
the net exposure and not to exceed the actual margin of solvency.

Ceded reinsurance contains credit risk of the reinsurer that is included in the calculation of expected
cash flows. The Company monitors the financial condition of reinsurers on an ongoing basis and
reviews its reinsurance arrangements periodically. The Company monitors the financial and credit
rating of reinsurers on a monthly basis, and also analyses financial soundness of reinsurers on a
quarterly and annual basis.

The Company does not utilise any stop-loss reinsurance to control its risk of losses resulting from
one-off event.

Terms and conditions of insurance contracts and nature of risks covered

The terms and conditions of insurance contracts that have a material effect on the amount, timing
and uncertainty of future cash flows arising from insurance contracts are set out below. In addition,

the following gives an assessment of the Company’s main products and the ways in which it manages
the associated risks.

8.1.1. Insurance contracts — Insurance against other financial loss

Product features

Insurance against other financial loss protects the property interest of an exporter related to contract
execution by a foreign counterparty-importer.

Covered risks:

Insured political events:

° acts of the governmental authority of the country of transit or the country of destination of
delivery of the Kazakhstani goods, works, services, or the country of the foreign counterparty
on expropriation, confiscation, restriction of ownership rights to the goods, works, services,
the result of the work performed owned by the exporter:;

. contingency actions of the governmental authority of the country of destination of delivery of
the Kazakhstani goods, works, services restricting or prohibiting delivery of the goods,
performance of works, provision of services;

° war, civil commotion, mass riots outside the Republic of Kazakhstan, preventing the execution
of obligations under the contract insured;
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o contingency actions of the governmental authority in the country of the foreign counterparty
restricting or prohibiting the conversion into a freely convertible currency and/or transfer of
payment.

Insured commercial events:
. bankruptcy of the foreign counterparty:

. default on financial obligations under the contract by the foreign counterparty.

Risk management

The risk assessment is based on the specific character of the transaction, which the exporter is willin g
to insure. The Company’s risk assessment comprises two components: assessment of political or
country risks and assessment of commercial risks. The projects are assessed on the basis of a
country's (political) risk and the risk related to trustworthiness of a counterparty abroad.

Commercial risk assessment

The Company assesses separately each transaction to determine the trustworthiness of a buyer. The
Company, in assessment of the commercial risks, is based on assessment of the buyer's country,
industry, market position and financial position.

Insurance risk assessment

The Company assesses the country risks according to the list of countries and classification of
countries by the risk level published by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development (OECD). This list also contains recommendations for the export credit agencies of the
OECD countries on the premium rates depending on the insurance period by country categories.

Insurance contracts — Loan insurance

Product features

Insurance of loans protects the property interest of a credit organisation related to the obligations of
an exporting entity (borrower) to reimburse, in accordance with the procedure set by the legislation
and a loan contract, the losses incurred as a result of non-fulfilment (improper fulfillment) of
liabilities under the loan contract.

Covered risks:

Insured political events:

° war, civil commotion, mass riots inside and outside the Republic of Kazakhstan, preventing
the execution of obligations under the loan contract;

° contingency actions of the governmental authority restricting or prohibiting the conversion
into a freely convertible currency and/or transfer of payment.

Insured commercial events:

. Non-fulfilment (improper fulfillment) by a policyholder of monetary obligations according to
the terms and conditions of a loan contract;

. Bankruptcy of a policyholder.
Risk management

The risk assessment is based on the adequate assessment of a borrower, its financial position,
assessment of political or country risks and commercial risks. The projects are assessed on the basis
of a borrower’s credit risk related to its paying capacity and factors that may affect it.
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iti)  Insurance contracts — Insurance against losses of financial organisations

Product features

Insurance against losses of financial organisations protects the property interest of a credit
organisation related to the obligations of an exporting entity (borrower) to reimburse, in accordance
with the procedure set by the legislation and loan contract, the losses incurred as a result of non-
fulfilment (improper fulfillment) of liabilities under a loan contract, bank guarantee, letter of credits.
Term currency transactions as part of the foreign currency contract.

Covered risks:

Insured political events:

o contingency actions of the governmental authority restricting or prohibiting the conversion
into a freely convertible currency and/or transfer of payment, as a result of which the Exporter
is unable to fulfill its financial liabilities to the Policyholder under the Contract of Provisions
of Financial Services to the Exporter:

Insured commercial events:

. non-performance (improper performance) by the exporter of its commitments to repay the
Principal Debt under the Loan contract;

. non-performance (improper performance) by the exporter of its financial liabilities under a
Bank Guarantee issued by a financial organisation under the obligations of the Exporter under
the Guarantee Agreement;

o non-performance (improper performance) by the exporter of its financial liabilities under a
letter of credit issued by an issuing bank on the obligations of the Exporter under the Contract
on the provision of a letter of credit;

. non-performance (improper performance) by the exporter of its obligations under the Term
Currency Transaction as part of the Foreign Currency Contract;

. Bankruptcy of a policyholder.
Risk management

The risk assessment is based on the adequate assessment of a borrower, its financial position,
assessment of political or country risks and commercial risks. The projects are assessed on the basis
of a borrower’s credit risk related to its paying capacity and factors that may affect it.

Risk management

The risk assessment is based on the specific character of the transaction, which the exporter is willing
to insure. The Company’s risk assessment comprises two components: assessment of political and
country risks and assessment of commercial risks. The projects are assessed on the basis of a
country's (political) risk and the risk related to trustworthiness of a counterparty abroad.

Concentration of insurance risk

A key aspect of the insurance risk faced by the Company is the extent of concentration of insurance
risk which may exist where a particular event or series of events could impact significantly upon the
Company’s liabilities. Such concentrations may arise from a single insurance contract or through a
small number of related contracts, and relate to circumstances where significant liabilities could arise.
An important aspect of the concentration of insurance risk is that it may arise from the accumulation
of risks within a number of individual classes or contracts tranche.

Concentrations of risk can arise in both high-severity of damage and low frequency events, such as
natural disasters and in situations where underwriting is biased towards a particular group, such as a
particular geography or demographic trend.

The Company’s key methods in managing these risks are two-fold. Firstly, the risk is managed
through appropriate underwriting. Underwriters are not permitted to underwrite risks unless the
expected profits are commensurate with the risks assumed.
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Secondly, the risk is managed through the reinsurance. The Company purchases reinsurance
coverage for various classes of its liability and property business. The Company assesses the costs
and benefits associated with the reinsurance programme on an ongoing basis.

Total aggregate exposures

The Company sets out the total aggregate exposure that it is prepared to accept in relation to
concentrations of risk. It monitors these exposures both at the time of underwriting a risk, and on a
monthly basis by reviewing reports which show the key aggregations to which the Company is
exposed. The Company uses a number of modeling tools to monitor aggregation in order to measure
the effectiveness of the reinsurance programmes and the net exposure to which the Company is
exposed.

As at 31 December 2023 the Company had 139 insurance agreements that were in force (31

December 2022: 129 insurance contracts). The main established concentration as of 31 December
2023 is as follows:

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2023

Total insured Reinsurance Net exposure (after

amount amount reinsurance)

Insurance type KZT’000 KZT’000 KZT’000
Voluntary insurance

Loan insurance 337.031.576 (22,775.000) 314.256,576

Insurance against other financial losses 53,279,222 (22,913,515) 30,365,707

Other voluntary insurance 14.189.162 (3.285.151) 10,904,011

Total 404,499,960 (48,973,666) 355,526,294

The key concentration identified as at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2022

Total insured Reinsurance Net exposure (after

amount amount reinsurance)

Insurance type KZT’000 KZT'000 KZT’000
Voluntary insurance

Loan insurance 291,947.910 (23.162,600) 268,785,310

Insurance against other financial losses 69,333,053 (18.623.614) 50,709,439

Other voluntary insurance 22,561,165 (7.814,809) 14.746.356

General civil liability 9,878,688 - 9,878,688

Total 393,720,816 (49,601,023) 344,119,793

Transition provisions

The Company has adopted a modified retrospective approach to insurance contracts at the date of
transition to IFRS 17. At initial recognition, a CSM is calculated based on transition assumptions
using the following simplifications:

- Probabilities of default up to the transition date were determined using data from international

rating agencies as of the end 2022 due to insignificant deviations from the corresponding data
from 2016 to 2021.

o Expected expenses up to the transition date were estimated based on 2021 expenses allocated
in a systematic and rational method, taking into account actual inflation for the period 2016 to
2021 equal to expected inflation for 2022 to 2023.

@ The discount rate curves up to 31 December 2017 were determined to be equal to the discount
rate curves as of 31 December 2018.

. The expected termination rate before the transition date was assumed to be equal to the actual
termination rate for the period from 2016 to 2021.
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9. Adjustments

The statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023 and the related income statement for the
twelve months ended 31 December 2022 have been amended in light of IFRS 17 adoption.

Balance Effect of Balance
under  transition to under
IFRS 4 IFRS 17 IFRS 17
1 January 1 January 1 January
2022 2022 2022
Statement of financial position
Assets
Reinsurers’ share in insurance contract provisions 1.316.305 (1.316.305) -
Reinsurers’ share in insurance contract provisions 1,459 - 1.459
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 3,361,224 (3,361.224) -
Reinsurance contract assets - 1.009.444 1,009,444
Insurance contract assets - 123.742 123.742
Deferred tax assets 40,090 481,959 522.049
Insurance and reinsurance receivables (less provisions for
impairment) 10.815 - 10,815
Liabilities
Provision for unearned premiums (9,014.946) 9,014,946 -
Provision for claims incurred but not reported (14,250.915) 14,250.915 -
Provision for claims reported but not settled (279.625) - (279,625)
Insurance and reinsurance payables (1,179,042) 1.179.042 -
Insurance and reinsurance payables (19.875) - (19,875)
Insurance contract liabilities - (23.052,295) (23.052,295)
Reinsurance contract liabilities - (258,060) (258.060)
Settlements with intermediaries for insurance (reinsurance)
activities (2.959) - (2,959)
Equity
Retained earnings (5,742.081) (1.927.837) (7.669.918)
Balance Effect of Balance
under transition to under
IFRS 4 IFRS 17 IFRS 17
31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022
Statement of financial position
Assets
Share of reinsurers in reserves under insurance contracts 1.061.334 (1,061,334) -
Share of reinsurers in reserves under insurance contracts 37.703 - 37.703
Insurance and reinsurance receivables 6.718.586 (6.718.586) -
Reinsurance contract assets - 858.820 858.820
Reinsurance contract assets - 170,440 170,440
Insurance contract assets - 119.817 119.817
Deferred tax assets 82.192 - 82,192
Insurance and reinsurance receivables (less provisions for
impairment) 2.128.650 (2,128.650) -
Liabilities
Provision for unearned premiums (12.380.904) 12,380.904 -
Provision for claims incurred but not reported (17,712,169) 17.712.169 -
Provision for claims reported but not settled (5.209,320) - (5.209,320)
Insurance and reinsurance payables (722.482) 722,482 -
[nsurance and reinsurance payables (154.138) - (154.138)
Insurance contract liabilities - (20.804.455) (20.804,455)
Insurance contract liabilities - (392,710) (392.710)
Reinsurance contract liabilities - (106,585) (106,585)
Deferred tax liabilities - (149.849) (149.849)
Reinsurance contract liabilities - (3.069) (3.069)
Settlements with intermediaries for insurance (reinsurance)
activities (8.016) - (8.016)
Equity
Retained earnings (929.703) 599.394 (330,309)
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Balance under

Balance under

IFRS 4 Restatement IFRS 17
For the year For the year For the year
ended ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022
Statement of profit and loss
Gross insurance premiums written 7,960,835 (7.960,835) -
Written premiums ceded to reinsurers (349.,836) 349.836 -
Change in the gross provision for unearned premiums (3.365.958) 3.365.958 -
Reinsurers’ share of change in the gross provision for
unearned premiums (254.971) 254,971 -
Claims paid (8.085,986) 8,085,986 -
Change in the provisions for claims incurred but not
reported (8.390,949) 8.390.949 -
Insurance revenue - 4,554,729 4,554,729
Insurance service expenses - (9,431.632) (9.431.632)
Net income/(expenses) from reinsurance contracts held - (645.796) (645.796)
Finance expenses from insurance contracts issued - (1,144,494) (1,144.,494)
Finance income from reinsurance contracts held - 108.956 108,956
General and administrative expenses (2.633.892) 512,661 (2,121.231)
Total net profit (loss) after taxes 2,272,145 2,086,295 4,358,440

CSM breakdown by retrospective and modified retrospective approaches:

In the table below, the second column provides information on contracts as of the transition date to
31 December 2021, because this date is accepted as the transition date; these are contracts from 2015
to 2021. The first column provides information on contracts from 2022 to 2023. Thus, information
about all contracts whose CSM affects the Company’s performance is reflected, since every contract

represents a group.

31 December 2023
Insurance contracts that have
been effective at the transition
New contracts and contracts to date to which the entity has
which the entity has applied a applied the modified
Insurance contracts issued retrospective approach retrospective approach Total
Insurance revenue 3,141,564 2,796,300 5,937,864
CSM at I January 2023 1,394,481 773,840 2,168,321
Changes related to current
services - - -
CSM recognised for the
services provided (665,972) (930,660) (1.596.632)
Changes that relate to
future services - - -
Changes in estimates that
adjust the CSM (460.175) 210,297 (249.878)
Contracts initially recognised
in the period 487,851 - 487.851
(638,296) (720,363) (1,358,659)
Finance expenses from
insurance contracts issued 136,263 60.507 196,770
Total amounts recognised
in comprehensive income
(B) (502,033) (659,857) (1,161,890)
CSM at 31 Deceniber 2023 892,448 113,984 1,006,432

To determine the CSM for contracts that have been in force at the end of 2021, the Company used a
modified retrospective method; for contracts that have been concluded in 2022, a retrospective

method was applied.
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11.

Interest income

Interest income calculated using the effective interest
rate method

Purchase and sale agreements (“reverse repo”) with an
original maturity of less than three months

Investment securities, measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Investment securities measured at amortised cost
Placements with banks and cash and cash equivalents

Other interest income
Investment securities, measured at fair value through
profit or loss

12. General administrative expenses

Salaries and bonuses

Consulting and professional services
Rent expenses

Social tax and social contributions
Travel expenses

Depreciation and amortisation
Advertising and marketing
Administrative expenses of the Board of Directors
Transportation costs

Training expenses

Membership fees

Communication services

Insurance of employees

Bank charges

Administrative expenses

Other

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023

2023 2022

KZT'000 KZT 000
12,154,331 6.266.477
2,566,425 2,717,191
1,266,071 1,770,604
1,099,550 1,909.319
17,086,377 12,663,591
76,160 72,585
76,160 72,585

Interest income is recorded for all debt instruments, other than those at FVTPL, on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method. This calculation includes in interest income and expense all fees
and charges paid and received by parties to the contract that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate. transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. Interest income for debt
instruments measured at FVTPL calculated at the nominal interest rate.

2023 2022
KZT’000 KZT’000
965,251 862,293
213,998 411,354
185,175 181,669
82,925 115,915
98,353 86.440
93,084 63,909
76,400 60,787
42,420 55,485
46,243 44,244
30,249 27.912
27,437 25,932
21,617 23,857
17.414 17,568
7,941 4,931
2,092 1,210
262395 137,725
2,172,994 2,121,231

The Company was provided with financial statements auditing services for the year ended 31
December 2023 in the amount of KZT 61,600,000, which were included in administrative expenses
in the item “Consulting and professional services™.

34



“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023

13. Income tax expense

2023 2022

KZT’000 KZT’000
Current income tax expense (885.,422) (762,454)
Total current income tax (885,422) (762,454)
Change in deferred tax liabilities due to origination and
reversal of temporary differences and movement in loss
allowance (675,012) (589,706)
Total income tax expense (1,560,434) (1,352,160)

In 2023, the applicable tax rate for current and deferred tax is 20% (2022: 20%).

Income tax expense is recorded in an amount determined by multiplying profit (loss) before tax for
the reporting period by a rate equal to management's best estimate of the weighted average annual
income tax rate for the entire financial year.

Therefore, the effective tax rate in the financial information may differ from management's estimate
of the effective tax rate for the annual financial statements.

Calculation of the effective income tax rate:

2023 2022
KZT’000 % KZT°000 %

Profit before income tax 6,514,318 100 6,151,536 100
Income tax calculated at the
effective tax rate (1,302,864) (20) (1,230,307) (20)
Non-taxable income on
investment securities 786,987 12 909,653 15
Net non-deductible
expense on recourse claim (1,049,714) (16) (1,043,039) (17)
Other non-taxable
income/expenses 3157 - 11,533 -

(1,560,434) 24 (1,352,160) (22)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes give rise to net deferred tax assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022.

Due to the fact that the insurance liabilities are calculated in accordance with [FRS 17, tax accounting
remains unchanged and is carried out in line with the provisions of the Resolution of the Board of
the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 26 “On approval of the form and deadline for
submitting reports on indicators for calculating the taxable income of the insurance (reinsurance)
organization” dated 24 April 2023, a temporary difference arises.

The deductible temporary differences do not expire under current tax legislation of the Republic of

Kazakhstan.
Movements in temporary differences for the year ended 31 December 2023 may be presented as
follows:
Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at
1 January profit or loss for 31 December
KZT°000 2023 the period 2023
Property and equipment and intangible assets (6,112) 5,157 (956)
Vacation and bonuses reserve 41,105 8,435 49,540
Provisions for facility administrative and
support activities 47,199 (41,039) 6,160
Effect of I[FRS 17 (149,849) (647,564) (797,413)
Total deferred tax liability (67,657) (675,012) (742,669)
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023

Movements in temporary differences for the year ended 31 December 2022 may be presented as
follows:

Balance as at Recognised in Balance as at

1 January profit or loss for 31 December

KZT’000 2022 the period 2022

Property and equipment and intangible assets (403) (5,709) (6,112)

Vacation and bonuses reserve 40,493 612 41,105
Provisions for facility administrative and

support activities - 47.199 47.199

Effect of IFRS 17 481,959 (631,808) (149.849)

Total deferred tax liability 522,049 (589,706) (67,657)

14. Cash and cash equivalents

As of 31 December 2023, cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows included:

31 December 31 December
2023 2022
KZT’000 KZT’000
Cash on bank accounts and call deposits
- rated from BBB+ to BBB- - 5,133,556
- rated from BB- to BB+ 1,044,864 517,631
- rated from B- to B+ 30
- not rated - 4,112,522
Reverse REPO
- rated AA+ 2,618,580
- rated BBB+ and BBB- 92,382,671 56,183,086
- rated from BB+ to BB- 3,574,194
- rated from B- to B+ 1,150,396 5,931,265
100,770,705 71,878,090
Credit loss allowance - (53)
Total cash and cash equivalents 100,770,705 71,878,037
Reverse REPO
31 December 2023 31 December 2023
Fair value Carrying amount
KZT’000 KZT’000
Kazakhstan government securities 53,076,074 53,310,766
US ftreasury bonds 2,626,636 2,618,580
Corporate securities 43,526,746 43,796,495
99,229,456 99,725,841

Cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are items that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash and
cash equivalents include reverse repurchase agreements with original maturities of less than three
months. Amounts that are restricted from being used for a period of more than three months at the
time of provision are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in both the statement of financial
position and the statement of cash flows. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at AC because: (i)
they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows represent SPPI, and (ii)
they are not designated at FVTPL.

The credit ratings above are presented in accordance with Standard&Poor's credit agency standards
or similar standards of other international agencies.
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15.

16.

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

For calculating allowances for expected credit losses on unrated financial instruments, the Company
applies the credit rating of the Parent Company.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all cash and cash equivalents are allocated to Stage
1 of the credit risk grading.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had balances with 3 issuers (under reverse Repo contracts),
whose share exceeds 10% of equity.

Total balances for these issuers as of 31 December 2023 is KZT 87.108,386 thousand.

Placements with banks

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

KZT’000 KZT’000

- rated from BBB+ to BBB- - 7.482,753
- rated from BB- to BB+ 21,043,266 4,741,002
- rated from B- to B+ - 10,254,357
21,043,266 22,478,112

Loss allowance (82.067) (153.513)
Total placements with banks 20,961,199 22,324,599

The credit rating is presented in accordance with Standard&Poor's credit agency standards or similar
standards of other international agencies.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all placements with banks are allocated to Stage 1
of the credit risk grading.

As at 31 December 2023, the annual effective interest rates generated by placement with banks
ranged between 0.3% and 8.5% (31 December 2022: ranged between 0,25% and 11%).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no balances with banks, whose balance exceeds 10% of
equity.

Movement in credit loss allowance

Stage 1
31 December 31 December
KZT’000 2023 2022
Balance at the beginning of the period 153,513 160,610
Net change in credit loss allowance (71,446) (7,097)
Balance at the end of the period 82,067 153,513

Investment securities

31 December

2023 2022

KZT’000 KZT’000

Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 23,299.824 25,201,794
Measured at amortised cost 6,044,231 18,210,256
Measured at fair value through profit or loss - 808,847
29,344,055 44,220,897
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

31 December

31 December

2023 2022
KZT’000 KZT’000
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Government bonds of the Republic of Kazakhstan
Rated from BBB+ to BBB- 12,669,549 13,797,096
Government bonds of foreign countries
Rated AA+ 281,450 270,505
Total government bonds 12,950,999 14,067,601
Securities of international financial organisations
Rated AAA 8,887,266 9,761,115
Rated from BBB+ to BBB- 1,461,559 1,373,078
Total securities of international financial organisations 10,348,825 11,134,193
23,299,824 25,201,794
Measured at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds of Kazakhstan banks
Rated from B+ to B- - 308,847
Total bonds of Kazakhstan banks - 808,847
Measured at amortised cost
Government bonds of the Republic of Kazakhstan
Rated from BBB+ to BBB- - 12,576,155
Total government bonds - 12,576,155
Corporate bonds of Kazakhstan companies
- not rated 4,564,644 4,615,597
Total corporate bonds of Kazakhstan companies 4,564,644 4,615,597
Securities of international financial organisations
Rated AAA 1,018,504 1,018,504
Rated from BBB+ to BBB- 461,083 -
Total securities of international financial organisations 1,479,587 1,018,504
6,044,231 18,210,256

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame established by
regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are recorded at trade date, which
is the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell a financial asset.

Business model assessment

The Company performs an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an asset is held

at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed, and information is
provided to management.

The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. In particular, whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest
revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial
assets to the duration of the liabilities that are funding those assets or realising cash flows
through the sale of the assets.

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management.

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed.

how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected.

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its
expectations about future sales activity. However, information about sales activity is not
considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s stated
objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows
nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are held in order to collect contractual cash flows. Currently, when
managing a portfolio of financial assets, when acquiring securities with a maturity of up to 2 years
and deposits, aimed to provide financial support for exporters, are classified as “held to collect the
contractual cash flows". At the same time, securities with similar characteristics can be attributed to

any other business model to depending on the market state and the conditions for the release of
securities.

The financial assets available-for-sale are held in order to collect contractual cash flows and to sell
an asset. Given the activities of the Company, in the management of the portfolio of securities with
a maturity of more than 2 years, the Company attributes them to the business model as “held to
collect the contractual cash flows and/or to sell”, in order to make possible payments for insurance
cases by selling securities.

The credit rating is presented in accordance with Standard&Poor's credit agency standards or similar
standards of other international agencies.

As at 31 December 2023, annual effective interest rates on investment securities denominated in
KZT ranged from 5.15% to 15.35% per annum (31 December 2022: from 4.1% to 15.3 5%).

As at 31 December 2023, annual effective interest rates on investment securities denominated in US
dollars ranged from 3.25% to 5.72% per annum (31 December 2022: were 3.94%)

As at 31 December 2023, the annual effective interest rates on investment securities denominated in
Canadian dollars were 5.38% per annum (31 December 2022: 4.31%)

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, all investment securities at amortised cost and at
fair value through other comprehensive income are categorised as Stage 1 credit risk. According to
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, the allowance for expected credit losses as at 31 December 2023
was KZT 2,725 thousand (31 December 2022: KZT 1.901 thousand).

As at 31 December 2023, the Company held financial instruments of 1| issuer, whose balances
exceeded 10% of equity. The gross value of these balances as at 31 December 2023 is
KZT 12,669,549 thousand (31 December 2022: 1 issuer with gross balances of KZT 26,373,252
thousand).
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(b)

©

Equity

Share capital

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements Jor the year ended 31 December 2023

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares
KZT000 2023 2022
Authorised for issue (ordinary sha res) 92,000 92,000
Issued and in circulation (ordinary shares) 91,440 91,440
Number of shares 87.300 87.300
Par value, KZT’000 266 266
Number of shares 2,780 2,780
Par value, KZT*000 5,000 5,000
Number of shares 1,360 1,360
Par value, KZT’000 50,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid, KZT’000 105,100,000 105,100,000

Capital management

The Company is subject to the regulatory

requirements of the Republic

solvency margin as defined by regulatory enactments.

The Company is required to maintain a solvency
margin ratio is determined by division of actual s
margin. The minimum required solvency margin is
including net earned premiums, claims paid, and p

which are as follows:

KZT’000

Actual solvency margin
Minimum solvency margin
Solvency margin

Dividends

of Kazakhstan regarding

margin ratio at not less than one. The solvency
olvency margin by minimum required solvency
a composite measure based on a number of factors
remiums ceded to foreign reinsurers.

As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 the Company complies with the solvency margins

2023 2022
KZT*000 KZT’000
110,755,000 102,179,076
4,119,902 2,947,072
26.88 34.67

In accordance with Kazakhstan legislation the Company's distributable dividends are limited to the

balance of retained earnings as recorded in the Com
accordance with IFRS or net profit for the curr
forward. A distribution cannot be made if this

insolvency.

pany’s statutory financial statements prepared in
ent year if there is an accumulated loss brought
would result in negative equity or the entity’s

During the year ended 31 December 2023 dividends of KZT 1.590,502 thousand or KZT 17.393.94
per share, with total number of shares being 91.440 were declared and paid (2022: KZT 1,408,393
thousand or KZT 15,402.39 per share, with the total number of shares being 91.440).
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(b)

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements Jor the year ended 31 December 2023

Provision for unexpected risks

In 2023, there was a decrease in provisions for unexpected risks of KZT 10,011,461 thousand (2022:
increase by KZT 3,844,409 thousand) within retained earnings, as in accordance with the Resolution
of the Management Board of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan Ne12 dated 3 | January
2019 “On Making Amendments to the Resolution of the Management Board of the National Bank

of the Republic of Kazakhstan™ No.304 dated 26 December 2016.

Risk disclosures

Management of risk is fundamental to the business of the Company and forms an essential element
of the Company’s operations. The major risks faced by the Company are those related to market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

Risk management policies and procedures

The Company’s risk management policies aim to identify, analyse and manage the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls. and to continuously monitor risk levels and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market conditions, products and services offered and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management
framework, overseeing the management of key risks and reviewing its risk management policies and
procedures as well as approving significantly large exposures.

The Management Board is responsible for monitoring and implementing risk mitigation measures
and ensuring that the Company operates within established risk parameters. The Head of the Risk
Management Department is responsible for the overall risk management and compliance functions,
ensuring the implementation of common principles and methods for identifying, measuring,
managing, and reporting both financial and non-financial risks.

Both external and internal risk factors are identified and managed throughout the organisation.
Particular attention is given to identifying the full range of risk factors and determining the level of
adequacy of the current risk mitigation procedures.

Apart from the standard credit and market risk analysis, the Risk Management Department monitors
financial and non-financial risks by holding regular meetings with operational units in order to obtain
expert judgments in their respective areas of expertise.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. Market risk comprises currency risk, interest rate risk, yield curve risk and other price
risks. Market risk arises from open positions in interest rate and equity financial instruments, which
are exposed to general and specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market
prices and foreign currency rates.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, whilst optimising the return on risk.

The Company manages its market risk by setting open position limits in relation to financial
instruments, interest rate maturity and currency positions and stop-loss limits. These are monitored
on a regular basis.

The management of the interest rates risk component of market risk by monitoring the interest rate
gap is supplemented by monitoring the sensitivity of the Company’s net interest margin to various
standard and non-standard interest rate scenarios.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to the effects of
fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 December 2023

Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may also reduce or create losses in the
event that unexpected movements occur.

Interest rate risk arises when the actual or forecasted assets of a given maturity period are either
greater or less than the actual or forecasted liabilities in that maturity period.

Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps. The timing of the
revision of interest rates for investment securities measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income with a carrying amount of Tenge 3,567,962 thousand (December 31, 2022:
Tenge 3,530,661 thousand) will occur within a period of up to 6 months (December 3 1,2022: from
2 to 6 months).

An analysis of the sensitivity of net profit for the year and equity of the Company as a result of
changes in fair value of investment securities measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income and measured at fair value through profit or loss to changes in the interest rates (based on
positions existing as at 31 December 2023 and as at 31 December 2022 and based on a simplified
scenario of a 100 basis point (bp) symmetrical fall or rise in all yield curves) is as follows:

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

Profit Equity Profit Equity
100 bp parallel
rise (13,681) (398,785) (5,032) (608,520)
100 bp parallel
fall 13,965 416,355 5,096 640,730

Currency risk

The Company has assets and liabilities denominated in several foreign currencies. Currency risk is
the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign currency exchan ge rates.

The structure of financial assets and liabilities by currency as at 31 December 2023 may be presented
as follows:

KZT’000 KZT USD RUB Other Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 93,220,539 7,550,166 - - 100,770,705
Placements with banks 3,790,884 9,957,937 7,212,378 - 20,961,199

Investment securities: - - - - -
- measured at fair value through

other comprehensive income 23,018.374 - = 281,450 23,299,824
- measured at fair value through
profit or loss

- measured at amortised cost 1,01 8,5(;4 5,025.72:7 - - 6,044,23:1
Insurance contracts assets 202,822 - - - 202,822
Reinsurance contract assets 910,985 < - - 910,985
Total assets 122,162,108 22,533,830 7,212,378 281,450 152,189,766

Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities (34,412.024) (288) (1.084) - (34,413.396)
Reinsurance contracts liabiities (65,573) - - - (65,573)
Other liabilities (136.681) - - - (136,681)
Total liabilities (34,614,278) (288) (1,084) - (34,615,650)
Net position as at 31 December

2023 87,547,830 22,533,542 7,211,294 281,450 117,574,116
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements Jor the year ended 31 December 2023

The structure of financial assets and liabilities by currency as at 31 December 2022 may be presented

as follows:

KZT*000

KZT USD RUB Other Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 66,265,301 5,612,735 I - 71,878,037
Placements with banks 1,068,553 12,524,850 8,731,196 - 22,324,599
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income 24,931,289 - - 270,505 25,201,794
- measured at fair value
through profit or loss 808,847 - - - 808,847
- measured at amortised
cost 13,594,659 4,615,597 - - 18,210,256
Insurance contracts assets 119,817 - - - 119,817
Reinsurance contract assets 1,065,774 1,189 - - 1,066,963
Total assets 107,854,240 22,754,371 8,731,197 270,505 139,610,313
Liabilities
Insurance contract
liabilities (29,559,248) (1,375) - - (29,560,623)
Reinsurance contracts
liabiities (117,665) (5 - - (117,670)
Other liabilities (350,029) (30,071) (380,100)
Total liabilities (30,026,942) (31,451) - (30,058,393)
Net position as at 31
December 2022 80,827,298 22,722,920 8,731,197 270,505 112,551,920

A drop in the KZT, as indicated below, against the following currencies at 31 December 2023 and

as at 31 December 2022 would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by
shown below. This analysis is based on foreign currency exchange rate variances that t
considered to be reasonably possible at the end of the reporting period. The analysis ass

other variables, in particular, interest rates. remain constant.

the amounts

he Company
umes that all

KZT’000 2023 2022
30% appreciation of USD (2023: 30%) 6,760,063 6,816,876
30% appreciation of RUB (2023: 30%) 2,163,388 2,619,359
10% appreciation of other currencies (2023: 10%) 28.145 27,051

A strengthening of the KZT against the above currencies at 31 December 2023 and 31 December
2022 would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the amounts shown
above, on the basis that all other variables remain constant.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company has policies and procedures in
place to manage credit exposures (both for recognised financial assets and unrecognised contractual
commitments), including requirements to set and comply with portfolio concentration limits. The
regulation for financial assets and liabilities management is reviewed and approved by the
Management Board.

The Company continuously monitors the status of individual counterparties and regularly reassesses
the creditworthiness of its counterparties. In addition to the analysis of individual borrowers, the Risk
Management Department assesses the loan portfolio in general in terms of credit concentration and
market risks.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

The maximum exposure to credit risk is generally reflected in the carrying amount of financial assets
in the statement of financial position and in the amount of unrecognised contractual obligations. The

impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential credit exposure is not
significant.

The maximum exposure to on balance sheet credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

2023 2022
KZT’000 KZT’000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 100,770,705 71,878,037
Placements with banks 20,961,199 22,324,599
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 23,299,824 25,201,794
- measured at fair value through profit or loss 808,847
- measured at amortised cost 6.044,231 18,210,256
Insurance contracts assets 202,822 119,817
Reinsurance contract assets 910,985 1,066,963
Total maximum exposure 152,189,766 139,610,313

As at 31 December 2023 the Company had 1 counterparty (31 December 2022: 1 counterparty),
credit risk exposure to whom exceeds 10% of maximum credit risk exposure. The credit risk exposure
for these customers as at 31 December 2023 is KZT 65,980.315 thousand (31 December 2022: KZT
56,380,059 thousand).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Liquidity risk exists when the maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and/or
controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is fundamental to
liquidity management. It is unusual for financial institutions ever to be completely matched, since
business transacted is often of an uncertain term and of different types. An unmatched position
potentially enhances profitability but can also increase the risk of losses.

The Company mitigates this risk by analysing liquidity gaps and maturity on an ongoing basis.
The following table shows financial liabilities by rem aining contractual maturity dates as at

31 December 2023 except for reinsurance contract assets and insurance contract liabilities:

Less than 1 1to3 3 months 1to5 More than
KZT 000 month months to 1 year years 5 years Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 100,770,705 - - - - 100,770,705
Placements with banks 12,727.547  1,309.896 6,103,624 1,633,132 - 21,774,199
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income 54,590  1,625.169 3,148,941 22.788,590 4,338.478  31.955.768
- measured at amortised
cost - 86,866 6.124.746 565,086 - 6,776,698
Total financial assets as at
31 December 2023 113,552,842 3,021,931 15,377,311 24,986,808 4,338478 161,277,370
Less than 1 1to3 3 months 1to5 More than
KZT’000 month months to 1 year years S years Total
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 136,681 - - - - 136,681
Total financial liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 136,681 - - = - 136,681
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The following table shows financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturity dates as at
31 December 2022. Insurance liabilities are shown based on expected maturities. Insurance contract
provisions are presented net of reinsurers share:

More

Less than 1 1to3 3 months 1to5 than 5
KZT000 month months to 1 year years years Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 71,878.037 - - - - 71.878,037
Placements with banks 512,597 3.687.992 15.885,104 2,880,903 73,361 23,039,957
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value
through other
comprehensive income 746,084 1,749.649 2,487,915 13.534.738  18,107.454  36.625.840
- measured at fair value
through profit or loss - 49.434 858.281 - - 907,715
- measured at amortised
cost - 75.181 12.963.836 5.937.962 - 18.976,979
Total financial assets as
at 31 December 2022 73,136,718 5,562,256 32,195,136 22,353,603 18,180,815 151,428,528

More

Less than 1 1to3 3 months 1to5 than 5
KZT’000 month months to 1 year years years Total
Financial liabilities
Other financial
liabilities 175.427 130,905 73,768 - - 380.100
Total financial
liabilities as at
31 December 2022 175,427 130,905 73,768 - - 380,100
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Contingencies
Litigation

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is subject to legal actions and complaints.
Management believes that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from such actions or complaints, will
not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition or the results of future operations of the
Company.

Taxation contingencies

The taxation system in Kazakhstan is relatively new and is characterised by frequent changes in
legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions, which are often unclear, contradictory and
subject to varying interpretation by different tax authorities, in particular recognition of income,
expenses and other items of the financial statements under IFRS. Taxes are subject to review and
investigation by various levels of authorities, which have the authority to impose severe fines and
interest charges. A tax year generally remains open for review by the tax authorities for five
subsequent calendar years; however, under certain circumstances a tax year may remain open longer.

These circumstances may create tax risks in Kazakhstan that are more significant than in other
countries. Management believes that it has provided adequately for tax liabilities based on its
interpretations of applicable tax legislation, official pronouncements and court decisions. However,
the interpretations of the relevant authorities could differ and the effect on these financial statements,
if the authorities were successful in enforcing their interpretations, could be significant.

Financial assets and liabilities: fair values and accounting classifications

The estimates of fair value are intended to approximate the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. However, given the uncertainties and the use of subjective judgment, the fair
value should not be interpreted as being realisable in an immediate sale of the assets or settlement of
liabilities.

Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in active markets are based on

quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. For all other financial instruments, the Company
determines fair values using other valuation techniques.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price
that would be received to sell the asset or paid to transfer the liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Valuation techniques include net present value and discounted cash flow models, comparison to
similar instruments for which market-observable prices exist and other valuation models.
Assumptions and inputs used in valuation techniques include risk-free and benchmark interest rates,
credit spreads and other premia used in estimating discount rates, bond and equity prices, foreign

currency exchange rates, equity and equity index prices and expected price volatilities and
correlations.

The objective of valuation techniques is to arrive at a fair value determination that reflects the price
of the financial instrument at the reporting date that would have been determined by market
participants acting at arm’s length.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

e Level 1: quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market for an identical instrument.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 31 December 2023

. Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included within Level 1 that are observable either
directly (i.e.. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.. derived from prices). This category includes
instruments valued using quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments:
quoted prices for similar instruments in markets that are considered less than active; or other
valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data.

o Level 3: inputs that are unobservable. This category includes all instruments where the
valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs
have a significant effect on the instrument’s valuation. This category includes instruments
measured based on quoted prices for similar instruments that require the use of significant
unobservable adjustments or judgments to reflect differences between instruments.

This category includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments
where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between the instruments.

As at 31 December 2023, the fair value of all financial instruments was categorised as Level 2, except
other financial assets and other fiaancial liabilities.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Impairment

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on the following financial
instruments:

° financial assets measured at amortised cost (including cash and cash equivalent. placements
with banks, investment securities measured at amortised cost. other financial assets;

] debt financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following, for which they are measured as 12-month ECL:

® debt investment securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

° other financial instruments on which credit risk has not increased significantly since their
initial recognition.

The Company considers a debt investment security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating
is equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which 12-month
ECL is recognised are referred to as ‘Stage 1° financial instruments.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
financial instrument. Financial instruments, other than purchased or originated credit-impaired
assets, for which a lifetime ECL is recognised are referred to as “Stage 2’ financial instruments (if
the credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, but the financial instruments are
not credit-impaired) and ‘Stage 3’ financial instruments (if the financial instruments are credit-
impaired).

Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort.

This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s
historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred
for an exposure by comparing;

® the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

° the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment expectations).

Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The criteria for determining whether credit risk has increased significantly vary by portfolio and
include quantitative changes in PDs and qualitative factors, including a backstop based on
delinquency.

Using its expert credit judgment and, where possible. relevant historical experience, the Company
may determine that an exposure has undergone a significant increase in credit risk based on particular
qualitative indicators that it considers are indicative of such and whose effect may not otherwise be
fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis.

The Company will deem the credit risk of a particular exposure to have increased significantly since
initial recognition if, the internal/external rating is determined to have decreased by more than two
(or more) grades since initial recognition.

As a backstop, the Company considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than
when an asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number
of days since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Credit risk grades (ratings)

The Company allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on relevant external credit risk
grade of Standard&Poor’s, Fitch Ratings, Moody’s Investors Services that is determined to be
predictive of the risk of default.

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases
exponentially as the credit risk deteriorates. Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade at initial
recognition based on available information about the counterparty or the issuer. Exposures are
subject to ongoing monitoring, which includes, without limitation, the analysis of the following data:

@ information obtained during periodic review of counterparty files — e.g. audited financial
statements;

° data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in external credit ratings;

° actual and expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological
environment of the borrower or in its business activities;

® payment record — this includes overdue status.

L existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is *credit-impaired® when

one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

° significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
® a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
° the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not

consider otherwise;

L) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or another financial
reorganisation; or

® the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

A financial asset that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is
usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving
contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment.

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt (other financial assets) is credit-
impaired, the Company considers the following factors:

® the market’s assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields;
° the rating agencies” assessments of creditworthiness;
° the country’s ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance:

° the probability of debt being restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses through
voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness;

] the international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as ‘lender of
last resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of
governments and agencies to use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth
of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to
fulfill the required criteria.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Restructured financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are renegotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognised and ECL are measured as follows:

® If the expected restructuring does not result in derecognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modified financial asset are included in calculating the
cash shortfalls from the existing asset;

] If the expected restructuring results in derecognition of the existing asset, then the expected
fair value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at
the time of its derecognition. This amount is included in calculating the cash shortfalls from
the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of derecognition to the
reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing financial asset.

Measurement of expected credit losses
ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. It is measured as follows:

®  financial assets that are not credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive);

®  financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date: as the difference between the
gross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows.

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:
] probability of default (PD);

° loss given default (LGD);

" exposure at default (EAD).

These parameters are generally derived from Standard&Poor’s and Moody’s studies. They will be
adjusted to reflect forward-looking information as described below.

Generating the term structure of PD

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures.
The Company collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analysed
by credit risk grading. The Company also uses information from external credit rating agencies.

The Company analyses data obtained to estimate the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how
these are expected to change as a result of the passage of time.

This analysis includes determination and calibration of relationships between changes in the level of
defaults and changes in key macroeconomic factors as well as detailed analysis of impact of some
other factors on risk of default. Management believes that for the majority of credit risk exposures,
the key macroeconomic indicators will be the GDP growth.

The Company uses expert judgment in assessment of forward-lookin g information. This assessment

is also based on external information. The Company then uses these forecasts to adjust its estimates
of PDs.

Definition of default
The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

) the counterparty is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

@ the counterparty is more than 90 days past due on credit obligation to the Company.

° it is becoming probable that the counterparty will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy
due to the counterparty’s inability to pay its obligations.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Company considers quantitative indicators e.g.
overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Company; and based
on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may
vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

Assessment of PD, LGD and EAD

External data of Moody’s studies over a considerable period (e.g. average historical PD values over
the period between 1984 and 2022) are used by the Company to build PDs due to lack of sufficient
historical data. PDs are to be recalculated as far as revised studies are available (generally, on an
annual basis).

If a counterparty or exposure migrates between rating classes, then this will lead to a change in the
estimate of the associated PD. PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures
and estimated prepayment rates.

The Company estimates LGD parameters depending on the type of counterparty.

The Company conducts an individual assessment for exposures designated at Stage 3 or credit-
impaired assets. An individual assessment is expressed in the analysis of the expected cash flows,
which can be estimated taking into account the cash flows of the operating activities of the
counterparty.

For financial assets designated as stages 1 and 2, the following 3 categories of LGD are considered:
® LGD is close to 0%, if the government acts as a counterparty;
® LGD is 70%, if the Kazakhstani bank acts as a counterparty; and

e for other counterparties, LGD is calculated based on Moody’s recovery studies according to the
external rating of a counterparty. LGD parameters are to be recalculated as far as revised studies
are available (generally, on an annual basis).

EAD represents the expected exposure as at the date of default. The Company derives the EAD from
the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under
the contract including amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount. For
securities EAD is calculated based on the carrying amount of an item in tenge, including acquisition
cost, current accrued interest, and discount/premium.

The portfolios for which external benchmark information represents a significant input into
measurement of ECL are as follows.

Exposure at External benchmarks used
31 December 31 December

KZT 000 2023 2022 PD LGD
Cash and cash equivalents 100,770,705 71,878,037 Moody’s recovery
Placements with 'b«?nks 20,961,199 22,324,599 S&P default study s.tlfdicsff(_)r _
Investment securities, 2023 positions within
measured at fair value Kazakhstan, LGD
through other 23 is based on
comprehensive income 23,299,824 25,201,794 Moodglusdicfault historical

- 2022 recoveries from
Investment securities, defaulted financial
measured at amortised cost 6,044,231 18,210,256 institutions

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

®  financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of
the assets

e debt instruments measured at FVOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the
loss allowance is disclosed and is recognised in the fair value reserve.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2023

Write-offs

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partially or in full) when there is no realistic prospect
of their recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off. This assessment is carried out at the individual asset level.

Recoveries of amounts previously written off are included in ‘impairment losses on debt financial
assets’ in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the Company using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date. The foreign currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between
amortised cost in the functional currency at the beginning of the period, adjusted for remuneration
accrued at the effective rate and payments during the period, and the amortised cost in foreign
currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are translated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies and recognised at
historical costs are transferred to the functional currencies at exchange rates at the date of
transactions.

Related party transactions
Control relationship

The Company’s parent company is National Management Holding “Baiterek” JSC. The Company’s
ultimate shareholder is the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

The Company's parent company presents financial statements available to external users.
Transactions with key management personnel

Total remuneration included in general and administrative expenses for the twelve months ended on
31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 is as follows:

KZT000 2023 2022
Members of the Board of Directors 22,795 30,602
Members of the Management Board 199.819 194,777

222,614 225,379

Transactions with other related parties
Other related parties comprise the government companies that are not part of Baiterek Group.
State guarantee issued by the Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan

In December 2023 the Ministry of Finance of the RK, EIC KazakhExport JSC and Fund of Problem
Loans JSC (formerly, Company for Asset Rehabilitation and Management) signed the Agreement on
Issue of the State Guarantee of the Republic of Kazakhstan to support export for the amount of
KZT 129,200,000 thousand, with 10-year term, as security of its liabilities related to repayment of
debt on insurance indemnities (in September 2022: KZT 210,000,000 thousand with 10-year term).

The state guarantee received by the Company will increase the amount of insurance obligations
assumed without additional cash contributions to the Company’s equity. The total amount of
government guarantees received is KZT 541,400,000 thousand.
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“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC
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As of 31 December 2023, the outstanding balances of transactions with other related parties are as

follows:

Other entities, incl.
Fellow government-related

KZT’000 subsidiaries entities Total
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 7 - 7
Placements with banks 7.166.207 - 7.166.207
Investment securities:

- measured at fair value

through other

comprehensive income - 12.669.542 12.669.542
-at amortised cost - 4.564.644 4.564.644
Insurance contract assets 52.080 - 52.080
Deferred tax assets - 54,744 54,744
Other assets - 821.323 821.323
Liabilities
Insurance contract
liabilities 1.500.124 - 1,506,124
Reinsurance contract
liabilities 20.905 - 20.905
Current tax liabilities - 162,156 162,156
Deferred tax liabilities 797,413 797,413
Other liabilities 15,962 35.660 51,622

As of 31 December 2022, the outstanding balances of transactions with other related parties are as

follows:
Other entities, incl.

Fellow government-related
KZT'000 subsidiaries entities Total
Assets
Investment securities:
- measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income - 18,412,693 18.412.693
- measured at amortised cost - 12.576.155 12.576,155
Assets under insurance contracts issued 20,556 - 20,556
Current tax asset - 349.716 349,716
Deferred tax assets - 82,192 §2.192
Other assets - 728.493 728.493
Liabilities
Liabilities under insurance contracts issued 48,530 - 48.530
Liabilities under reinsurance contracts held 32,950 - 32.950
Deferred tax liabilities 149,849 149,849
Other liabilities 18.028 21,731 39,759

The amounts presented below are included in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the twelve months ended 31 December 2023 and 3 December 2022:

2023 2023

2022 2022

Other entities, incl.
Fellow government-related

Other entities, incl.
Fellow government-related

KZT’000 subsidiaries entities subsidiaries entities
Profit

Insurance revenue 114.215 - 170,702 -
Insurance service expenses (7.388) 226.601 (6,651) (4,550,000)
Net expenses from

reinsurance contracts held 16,361 - 82.657 -
Interest income calculated

using the effective interest

rate method 485,560 2.251,503 - 2.828.921
Impairment losses on

financial assets (16.592) - - -
Administrative expenses (189,992) (111,775) (172,744) (75.782)
Other operating expense, net - (82,444) - (51,171)
Income tax expense - (1.560,434) - (1.352.160)
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23. Events after the reporting period

On 23 January 2024, the President of the Republic of Kazakhstan signed the Law “On Amendments
and Supplements to Certain Legislative Instruments of the Republic of Kazakhstan on Issues of the
Export Credit Agency and Promoting the Export of Non-Primary Goods (Works, Services)”.

The Law was drafted in the fulfillment of the instructions of the President of the Republic of
Kazakhstan and provides for the establishment of the Export Credit Agency of Kazakhstan on the
basis of the existing subsidiary of the National Management Holding “Baiterek”, “KazakhExport”
Export Insurance Company JSC.

“KazakhExport™ Export Insurance Company JSC is a single operator for the promotion of non-
primary exports, performing the functions of an export credit agency.

The mission is to support the growth of non-primary exports of Kazakhstan.

“KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC ensures a unified approach to providing support to
exporters.

The Company’s services are voluntary and any existing enterprise in Kazakhstan producing non-
primary goods that plans to operate in the international market and protect its business from risks can
use these services.

As part of its activities, “KazakhExport” Export Insurance Company JSC assumes the risks of
possible losses of domestic non-primary sector exporters or their foreign importers, improves the
financial conditions of integration between the exporter and the importer when implementing export
transactions.
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